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984 

P R O C E E D I N G S  
(Transcri p t  cont nues i n sequence from Vol ume 6.1 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Le t ' s  get back on the  record. 

S t a f f  , your next witness i s  Mr. Brinkley? 

MR. KEATING: Yes. S t a f f  c a l l s  Matthew Brinkley. 

MATTHEW BRI NKLEY 

was ca l led as a witness on- behalf o f  the S t a f f  o f  the Flor ida 

Public Service Commission and, having been duly sworn, 

t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

DIRECT EXAM1 NATION 
BY MR. KEATING: 

Q M r .  Brinkley, were you sworn i n  yesterday? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q Could you please state your name and business address 

f o r  the record. 

A Matthew Brinkley. My address i s  2540 Shumard Oak 

Boul evard , Ta l  1 ahassee, F1 o r i  da 32399 - 0850. 

Q 
A 

And what i s  your posit ion? 

I'm a regulatory analyst w i th  the d iv is ion  o f  

economic regul a t i  on. 

Q Mr. Brinkley,  d i d  you prepare or cause t o  be prepared 

d i r e c t  testimony f i l e d  November 3rd, 2003 in t h i s  docket? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Do you have any corrections or  c l a r i f i c a t i o n s  t o  make 

t o  tha t  testimony? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A Yes, I do. I wanted t o  c l a r i f y  t ha t  my testimony was 

directed toward Issue 30 which discusses secur i ty  costs. And 

i n  my testimony, I reference hedging costs as wel l ,  and I ' d  

l i k e  for the hedging costs t o  be.str icken. 

Q And I believe t h a t  sole reference t o  hedging costs i s  

a t  Page 3, Line 7 t o  your testimony? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q 

there. 

Did you a1 so prepare or  cause - - we1 1 , l e t  me stop 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Keating, so the change t o  the 

testimony i s  on Page 3, Line 7. You would delete the words 

"and hedging"? 

MR. KEATING: That's correct  . 
CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. 

MR. KEATING: Sta f f  would ask t h a t  M r .  Br ink ley 's  

testimony p r e f i l e d  November 3rd be moved i n t o  the record. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: The p r e f i l e d  testimony o f  Matthew 

Brinkley f i l e d  November 3rd shal l  be inserted i n t o  the record 

as though read. 

BY MR. KEATING: 

Q And, Mr. Brinkley, d i d  you also prepare or cause t o  

be prepared Exhibits MGB-1, MGB-2, and MGB-3 t o  your d i r e c t  

t e s t  i mony? 

A Yes, I did.  

Q Do you have any corrections t o  those exhibits? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A No, I don't. 
MR. KEATING: S t a f f  would l i k e  t o  have those exh ib i ts  

marked  as a composite exhibit: 

CHAIRMAN JABER: MGB-1 .through MGB-3 are i den t i f i ed  

as composite Exh ib i t  36. 

(Exhibit  36 marked f o r  i denti f i c a t i  on. ) 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



9 8 7  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

4. 

A .  

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A .  

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF MATTHEW BRINKLEY 

DOCKET NO. 030001-E1 

NOVEMBER 3 ,  2003 

Please s t a t e  your name and business address. 

My name i s  Matthew Br ink ley .  My business address 

B1 vd . , Tal 1 ahassee, F1 o r i  da , 32399. 

By whom are you employed and i n  what capaci ty? 

s 2540 Shumard Oak 

I am employed by t he  F lo r i da  Pub l ic  Service Commission as a Regulatory 

Analyst I V  i n t h e  Bureau o f  Survei 11 ance/Fi nance, D i  v i  s ion o f  Economic 

Regulation. 

P1 ease provi de a bri e f  description o f  your educati onal background and 

your professional  experience. 

I received a Bachelor o f  Science degree w i t h  a major i n  Accounting and 

a minor i n  Finance from F lo r ida  Sta te  Un ive rs i t y  i n  1991. I received 

a Master o f  Busi ness Admi n i  s t r a t i  on from F1 o r i  da State Uni vers i  t y  i n  

1992. I rece ived my C e r t i f i e d  Pub l ic  Accountant l i cense  i n  1992 and 

prac t iced  p u b l i c  accounting from 1992 t o  1994. 

Since j o i n i n g  t h e  F l o r i d a  Publ ic Service Commission i n  1994, I have he ld  

responsi b i  1 i t i e s  re1 a t i  ng t o  accounti ng , f i  nance, and economic research 

and other accounting and ratemaki ng mat te rs .  W i  t h i  n the  ratemaki ng 
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A .  

Q .  

A .  

area, I prepare the rate base, net operating income, capital structure, 

and other related schedules for electric and gas u t i l i t i es  under a rate 

review. These schedules are the basis for deriving base rates. 

What i s  the purpose of your testimony? 

The purpose o f  my testimony is  t o  recommend t o  the Commission-that base 

amounts used for cal cul a t i  ng incremental securi t y  costs for 

s houl d be Clp& recovery through the capacity cost recovery c 

adjusted for growth i n  kilowatt-hours sales. To not  convert historic 

amounts t o  rates, i . e . ,  adjust historic expenses for growth, results i n  

costs being recovered impl i c i t l y  i n  base rates and explicitly i n  a cost 

recovery clause. This a form o f  double recovery. 

Why i s  such an adjustment appropriate? 

I t  i s  overly simplistic and wrong t o  say t h a t  base rates were set  t o  

recover a particular dollar amount of a given expense, so anyth ing  above 

t h a t  i s  incremental and not  recovered i n  rates. T h a t  analysis is  

equivalent t o  saying t h a t  base rates were set  t o  generate revenues o f  

a given amount and anything above t h a t  was no t  contemplated t o  be 

generated. The conclusion reached by t h a t  logic i s  t o  refund a l l  

revenues above the revenues determined i n  a rate case. I f  the assertion 

t h a t  rates are not set t o  cover increasing expenses were true, another 

conclusion one could reach i s  t h a t  every year o r  two the u t i  1 1  t y  would 

be back i n  for a rate increase. Clearly, rates are expected t o  generate 

more revenues which w i  11 cover increased costs as the u t i  1 i t y  grows. 

-3- 
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Q .  

A.  

4 
A 

How would an adjustment be made? 

I n  a r a t e  case, expenses are used t o  determine t o t a l  revenue 

requi rements which are u l  t i m a t e l y  trans1 ated i n t o  ra tes  based on b i  7 1 i ng 

determinants approved i n  the  r a t e  case. S imi lar ly ,  any expense can be 

converted t o  a cents per u n i t  based on the  b i l l i n g  determinants i n  the  

r a t e  case. Since the  u t i l i t y  c o l l e c t s  t h a t  cents per u n i t  on every u n i t  

so ld ,  as the  u t i  1 i ty  s e l l  s more energy, i t  recovers p ropor t iona l  l y  more 

for t h e  expense (or less i f  t he  company sells l ess  energy.) To 

determine i f  base ra tes  recover a cos t  i n  a l a t e r  year,  the  cos t  i n  the  

l a t e r  year would be d iv ided by the  b i l l i n g  determinants f o r  the  l a t e r  

year and i f  the  recovery r a t e  exceeds the  cos t  r a t e ,  i t  would be 

concluded t h a t  no add i t iona l  cos t  recovery i s  necessary. To the ex ten t  

t h a t  t he  cos t  r a t e  exceeds the  recovery r a t e ,  t h a t  incremental r a t e  

could be appl i ed t o  the 1 a te r  year b i  11 i ng determinants t o  ca l  cul  ate the  

amount for considerat ion f o r  separate recovery. 

Can you provide an example? 

Yes. I f  $100,000 was allowed f o r  an expense i tem i n  the l a s t  r a t e  case 

and ra tes  were s e t  based on 25,000,000 KWH sales,  t he  expense represents 

a recovery r a t e  o f  $0.0004/KWH. I f  t he  KWH’s so ld  today were 50,000,000 

KWH, then the  u t i l i t y  would i m p l i c i t l y  recover $200,000 by the r a t e .  

To compare an actual expense today o f  $300,000 t o  the  o r i g i n a l  $100,000 

used t o  s e t  ra tes  ins tead o f  $200,000 ignores the  impact o f  growth i n  

revenues. 

-4- 
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Q. 

A .  

Q. 

A .  

Q. 
A.  

Do h i s t o r i c  and current  expenses have t o  be converted t o  cents per KWH 

t o  determine what i s  incremental t o  base rates? 

No. A shor tcu t  method i s  t o  m u l t i p l y  the  base year expense by the  

percentage change i n  energy so ld  from the base year t o  the  cur ren t  year .  

I f  energy sales increased 100%. t he  base year expense o f  $100,000 would 

be grossed-up t o  $200,000 which i s  then the  basis o f  determining what 

i s  i ncremental . 

Is t h i s  methodology appropr iate when the base year used 

subsequent t o  a pro jected t e s t  year i n  a r a t e  case? 

Yes. Regardless o f  the  year chosen as a base year ,  the  

s a year 

lase year 

expense should be adjusted f o r  sales growth from t h e  t ime o f  the base 

year t o  the year i n  question. Ad jus t ing  f o r  growth i s  j u s t  a short-cut 

f o r  look ing  a t  a base cos t  as a per u n i t  r a t e  and can be thought o f  as 

a f a l l o u t .  

Has t h i s  method01 ogy ever been proposed before the Commission? 

Yes. On page 7 o f  Korel M .  Dubin’s testimony i n  Docket No. 001148-EI, 

Ms. Dubin proposed “ i n  order t o  ensure t h a t  there  i s  no double recovery, 

FPL’s proposed methodology ca l l s  f o r  t he  Gr idF lo r ida  costs t o  be 

adjusted f o r  Transmission Costs i n  8ase Rates. Each year the  amount o f  

transmission costs  cu r ren t l y  i n  base ra tes  i s  t o  be adjusted f o r  sales 

as described below. This amount would then be subtracted from the 

-5- 
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Gri dF1 o r i  da costs before i nc l  us i  on i n  the  Capacity Cost Recovery Factor 

c a l c u l a t i o n . ”  A f t e r  walking through an example, she goes on t o  say, 

“This r e s u l t s  i n  t he  transmission cos t  i n  base ra tes  escalated t o  2003 

t o  r e f l e c t  t he  increase i n  sales i n  2003 . ”  Further on page 11 o f  her 

test imony, she says “FPL bel ieves i t  i s  appropr iate f o r  t he  Cpmmission 

t o  expressly approve the  methodology t o  recover the  G r i  dFl o r i  da 

transmission costs,  t o  the  ex ten t  they exceed the  amount r e f l e c t e d  i n  

base ra tes ,  through the  Capacity Cost Recovery Clause. Such approval 

would; 1) avoid double recovery, 2) avoid under/over recovery o f  costs,  

3) would be admin i s t ra t i ve l y  e f f i c i e n t  and would g r e a t l y  f a c i l i t a t e  

review o f  the  l e v e l  and basis for transmission costs i n  the  fu tu re ,  and 

4)  appear t o  be the  type o f  costs the Commission acknowledged would be 

appropri ate i n establ  i shing the  Capacity Cost Recovery C1 ause. ” (See 

E x h i b i t  MGB-1. )  

-6- 
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Q. 

A .  

Q. 
A.  

Does the  existence o f  a r a t e  case sett lement have imp l ica t ions  w i t h  

grossing- up? 

Yes and no. Adjus t ing  a n  expense f o r  growth i n  order t u  ca l cu la te  what 

should be recovered through a cost  recovery c lause i s  n o t  a change i n  

base ra tes  and i s  apar t  from the  s t i p u l a t i o n s  approved i n  Docket Nos. 

001148-E1 and 000824-EI. It on ly  a s h o r t - c u t  method o f  convert ing 

h i s t o r i c a l  and c u r r e n t  year expenses t o  rates t o  see i f  an actual 

expense r a t e  exceeds the base r a t e  the  company charges. The goal i s  t o  

prevent double recovery which occurs where normal growth i n  base rate 

expenses i s  allowed separate recovery through a clause. In f a c t ,  the 

existence o f  r a t e  case sett lements makes i t  even more important t o  do 

t h i s ,  

Why i s  i t  more important t o  gross-up under r a t e  case sett lements? 

With normal r a t e  o f  r e t u r n  regu la t i on ,  i f  expenses r i s e  f a s t e r  o r  slower 

than revenues, t h e  company’s ROE w i  11 r i s e  o r  fa1 1 i n  p a r t ,  accordingly. 

I f  ROE’s r i s e  o r  f a l l  too far, base ra tes  can be rese t  according t o  the 

new l e v e l s .  I f  a company were t o  double recover i n  a l a rge  enough 

fashion, the ROE would be higher than i t  would otherwise, and i t  would 

a t  l e a s t  a f f o r d  the  possib i7 i ty  o f  a change i n  base ra tes .  Under the 

sett lements approved f o r  FPL and PEFI  , the  ROE i s  no longer the  basis 

f o r  jetermining i f  a refund or change i n  ra tes  i s  required. Under 

s e t t  ements t h a t  l i m i t  the  use o f  ROE’s t o  t r i g g e r  r a t e  reviews, i t  i s  

even more important t o  prevent double recovery o f  expenses by ad jus t ing  

base year expenses f o r  growth i n  KWH sales.  

- 7 -  
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Q .  

A .  

PEFI  are s e t  h igh  enough t o  account f o r  normal growth 

r e s u l t  i n  a refund, i t  could be argued t h a t  lit would 

reduce the  gross-up amount p ropor t iona l  l y  across a1 

What is  the impact o f  revenue caps i n  rate case settlements as f a r  as 

grossing up base year expenses? 

The existence o f  a revenue c-ap w i t h  esca la t ion  clauses does no t  

necessari l y  r e s u l t  i n  a refund. The revenue caps i n  place f o r  FPL and 

I f  a cap does 

be necessary t o  

expenses so a 

refund wouldn’ t  be made once through base ra tes  and again i n  a cos t  

recovery clause. The argument f o r  that  approach i s  t h a t  since the 

“allowed” growth o f  t he  company’s revenues were capped, any base amounts 

should be adjusted only f o r  t he  allowed growth, not the  pre-refund 

revenue growth. The problem w i t h  t h a t  approach i s  t h a t  i t  takes what 

would be a s t ra igh t fo rward  c a l c u l a t i o n  o f  a growth adjusted expense and 

backs out t he  refund which ra ises  cost recovery through a clause by an 

equivalent amount. I n  essence, i t  would fo rce  ratepayers t o  g ive  back 

t h e i r  base r a t e  refund through a cos t  recovery c lause. The c a l c u l a t i o n  

o f  what i s  al lowable through a cos t  recovery clause should be made i n  

i s o l a t i o n  o f  any base r a t e  refunds t o  prevent clauses from being used 

t o  undermi ne base r a t e  refunds ordered by s t i  pul a t i  on. 

E x h i b i t  MGB-2 shows a sample c a l c u l a t i o n  o f  how t o  determine gross-up 

amounts i n the absence o f  rate-case s t i  pul a t i  ons. Ad jus t i  ng f o r  growth 

keeps neut ra l  the u t i l i t y ’ s  r a t e  o f  r e t u r n .  That i s ,  the pro jec ted  NO1 

equals the  requ i red  N O I .  E x h i b i t  MGB-3 shows a sample c a l c u l a t i o n  o f  

-8- 
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4. 
A .  

Q. 
A. 

a1 l o c a t i n g  a revenue refund t o  reduce the  expense growth adjustments. 

I f  done, the  u t i l i t y ’ s  NO1 i s  what i s  was before the  revenue refund; 

i . e . ,  the  u t i l i t y  gets back i t s  refund i n  t h e  cos t  recovery clause. 

Although only consider ing one l i n e  i t em expense ou t  o f  a l l  expenses 

would no t  completely undermine the  ordered refund i f .  i t  i s L  a small 

enough percentage, i n  p r i n c i p a l  t he  refund ordered by the  sett lement 

agreement should n o t  reduced a t  a1 1 - 

B r i e f l y ,  could you summarize your test imony? 

Yes. If  the  Commission decides t o  a l low recovery o f  incremental costs 

where the  incremental cost  i s  based on an h i s t o r i c  year,  the  Commission 

should gross up (or  down) the  h i s t o r i c  (base) year f o r  the growth ( o r  

dec l ine)  i n  energy sales i n  k i lowat t -hours  from the  base year t o  the 

cu r ren t  year.  Grossing up a base year amount i s  merely a mathematical 

sho r t - cu t  t o  conver t i  ng h i  s t o r i  c and cu r ren t  year expenses i n t o  rates 

and examining what i s  incremental on t h a t  bas i s .  

Does t h i s  concl ude your testimony? 

Yes, i t  does. 

-9- 
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995 

IY MR. KEATINE: 
Q Mr. Brinkley, have you prepared a summary o f  your 

Lestimony? 
A Yes, I have. 

Q Could you please provide t h a t  summary. 
A Thank you. The purpose o f  my testimony i s  t o  propose 

;hat  the Commission, when using a historical base year t o  
letermine wha t  i s  incremental and proper for recovery through a 
:ost recovery clause, look a t  the expenses on a per u n i t  basis 
ilsing the respective ki lowatt  hours sold f o r  the base and 

:urrent years. 
The F1 orida Pub1 i c  Service Commi ssion is  responsible 

For setting rates t h a t  allow the recovery of costs prudently 
incurred by a rate-regulated u t i l i t y  under i t s  jurisdiction. 
[ n  doing so, the Commission i s  also responsible for ensuring 
;hat costs are not recovered through both base rates and cost 
-emvery clauses simultaneously. 

When rates are set, consumption increases, new 
xstomers come on - 1 i ne, revenues increase, expenses i ncrease. 
[ n  other words, the company grows. In between rate cases, on 
an aggregate basis, a l l  areas grow re1 atively proportionally 
such t h a t  ROE fluctuates w i t h i n  i t s  authorized range. 
Therefore, i n  between rate cases, rates recover normal growth 
and expenses. W i t h o u t  accounting for this growth, cost 
recovery i s  given twice. Once implicitly and once explicitly. 
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With regards t o  the ra te  case settlements e f fec t i ve  

'or F lo r ida  Power & L ight  and Progress Energy F lor ida,  

:alcul at ing incremental costs -wi th regards t o  growth should be 

I nonissue. The e f f e c t  o f  a base r a t e  refund ordered because 

rf those settlements i s  apart from the issues a f fec t i ng  cost 

'ecovery i n  clauses. I n  fact ,  i f  a growth adjustment were t o  

)e reduced because o f  a refund, i t  would amount t o  ratepayers 

l i v i n g  the refund back t o  the u t i l i t i e s  through the  clause, 

I i kel y no t  what the par t ies  have intended. Thi s concl udes my 

;ummary, and I'm avai lable f o r  questions. 

MR. KEATING: S t a f f  would tender M r .  Br ink ley f o r  

r o s s  . 
CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, M r .  Keating. 

M r .  McWhirter, do you have any 

MR. McWHIRTER: No questions 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r  . Vandi ver? 

MR. VANDIVER: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r  . LaFace? 

MR. LaFACE: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r  . But1 er? 

MR. BUTLER: Yes, I have a few 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Go ahead. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BUTLER: 

questions? 

questions. 

Q F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  M r .  Brinkley, j u s t  as a s o r t  o f  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

997 

c l  a r i  f y i  ng housekeeping matter, on your testimony, Page 3, 

Line 7, you had taken out the words "and hedging" i n  a revis ion 

t o  the p r e f i l e d  testimony; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q On Line 8, i t  refers  t o  " f o r  recovery through the 

fuel o r  capacity cost recovery clauses." Would you agree tha t  

consistent w i th  the change you made delet ing the words "and 

hedging," t h a t  you ought t o  take out the words " fue l  or" and 

then j u s t  make i t  capacity cost recovery clause? 

A Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Where i s  that ,  M r .  But ler? 

MR. BUTLER: I t ' s  on Line 8, Page 3, the next l i n e  

a f te r  where "and hedging" came out 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And, M r .  Brinkley, the change you 

are now a r t i c u l a t i n g  i s  what exactly? 

THE WITNESS: Since we're only looking a t  incremental 

secur i ty costs, we're only looking a t  the capacity cost 

recovery clause and not the fuel recovery clause. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: So you would recommend delet ing 

which words? This i s  your testimony, so you need t o  t e l l  me 
what - - 

THE WITNESS: "Fuel or" i n  the next l i n e ,  Line 8. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A l l  r i g h t .  

BY MR. BUTLER: 

Q And then j u s t  for grammar, the "clauses" would end up 
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3eing "clause" a few words l a te r .  You would agree w i th  tha t  as 

Mell? 

A Correct. Yes. Thank you. 

Q M r .  Brinkley, you c i te .Kory Dubin's testimony i n  the 

or ig inal  GridFlorida proceeding for her proposal t o  gross-up 

base transmission costs fo r  increases i n  sales. Do you know i f  

Ms. Dubin's proposal was adopted by the Commission? 

A I'm not aware tha t  i t  was. I th ink  i t  was 

the decision. 

Q Do you know whether FPL u l t imate ly  suggest 

deferred, 

d t o  the 

Commission tha t  there are a var ie ty  o f  acceptable approaches t o  

recovering incremental GridFl or ida costs? 

A I'm not  aware. 

Q 

A No . 
Q 

You don ' t  know one way or the other? 

Did you examine the record o f  the various GridFlorida 

proceedings t o  determine how FPL's pos i t ion on tha t  issue might 

have changed during the course o f  the proceedings? 

A No, I d i d  not. 

Q Okay. 

A 

c i t e  tha t .  

I d i d  not r e l y  on her testimony fo r  my own, bu' I d i d  

Q Is i t  your understanding tha t  the Commission has 

deferred determi nation o f  the spec1 f i  c mechani sm for recovery 

of incremental GridFlorida costs u n t i l  u t i l i t i e s  actual ly  f i l e  
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for  recovery o f  those costs? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s  what I understand. 

MR. BUTLER: Thank you. Madam Chairman, I had handed 

Dut during the break a three-page document tha t  - -  a l e t t e r  

from FPL dated Ju ly  25, 2003 t o  Ms. Bay0 w i th  an .attachment t o  

it, and I th ink tha t  i t  should be marked as Exhib i t  37. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: .- The July 25th, 2003 l e t t e r  from 

- 

Steve Romig w i l l  be marked as Exhib i t  37. 

MR. BUTLER: Thank you. 

( E x h i  b i  t 37 mar ked f o r  i dent i f i cat i on. ) 
BY MR. BUTLER: 

Q M r .  Brinkley, do you have a copy o f  Exhib i t  37 i n  

front o f  you? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q 

A Very recent ly.  I have looked i t  over though. 

Q 

Have you seen t h i s  before? 

Okay. I f  you tu rn  t o  Page 2, would you agree tha t  

t h i s  l e t t e r  i s  a repor t  or attaches a repor t  on a revenue 

refund for 2002, calendar year 2002 under FPL's ex is t ing 

revenue sharing refund mechanism and i t s  s t ipu la t ion  o f  about 

$11 mi l l i on?  

A It appears t o  be a p a r t i a l  year beginning Apr i l  15, 

2002. 

Q And tha t  would be because t h a t ' s  when the settlement 

went i n t o  e f fec t ;  i s  t ha t  correct? 
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Q Okay. Mr. Brinkley, are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  the terms 

o f  FPL's r a t e  case settlement; 2002 r a t e  case settlement? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Would you agree t h a t  Paragraph 3. states tha t  

1000 

the revenue sharing mechanism i n  the s t i pu la t i on  w i l l  be-the 

appropriate and excl usive mechani sm t o  address earnings 1 eve1 s? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Now, t h i s  settlement was approved by the 

Commission i n  Apr i l  o f  2002; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And Ms. Dubin f i l e d  her GridFlorida testimony 

t h a t  you excerpted as an attachment t o  your testimony i n  

August 2001 ; correct? 

A Correct. She provided her testimony during the time 

t h a t  a s im i la r  revenue sharing plan was i n  place. 

Q Right. You would be r e f e r r i n g  t o  FPL's 1999 revenue 

s t i  pul a t i  on? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay. But a t  tha t  po in t  FPL would not have had any 

way o f  knowing whether tha t  1999 settlement, which was due t o  

expire i n  Ap r i l  o f  2002, would o r  wouldn't be replaced by 

another s t ipu lat ion,  d i d  it? 

A 1 would agree w i th  tha t .  

MR. BUTLER: That's a l l  the questions tha t  I have. 
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Thank you, M r .  Brinkley. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r .  Beasley. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Cor" ssioners. S t a f f .  

MR. KEATING: No red i rect .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Thank you. Exh ib i t  36, 

s t a f f ,  without objection, w i l l  be admitted i n t o  the record. 

FPL Exh ib i t  37, without objection, w i l l  be admitted i n t o  the 

record . 
(Exhibits 36 and 37 admitted i n t o  the record.) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r .  Brinkley, thank you f o r  your 

testimony . 
(Witness excused.) 

MR. KEATING: Chairman, could I ask i f  Exhib i t  35, 

M r .  McNulty's, was moved i n t o  the record? 

CHAIRMAN JABER: It was. 

MR. KEATING: Okay. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: We' re on the rebut ta l  witnesses, 

Commi ss i  oners. 

TECO, you had W i l l i a m  Whale? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes, ma'am. C a l l  M r .  Whale. 

W I L L I A M  T. WHALE 

was ca l led  as a rebuttal  witness on behalf o f  Tampa E lec t r i c  

Company and, having been duly sworn, t e s t i  f i e d  as fol1 ows: 
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DIRECT EXAM I NATION 
BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q M r .  Whale, you have -prepared testimony, have-you not ,  
ent i t led ,  "Rebuttal Testimony o f  . W i l l i a m  T. Whale"? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q And tha t  was f i l e d  October 16th; correct? 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q 

A No, s i r .  

Q 

Do you have any changes or  corrections t o  make? 

I f  I were t o  ask you the questions i n  t ha t  rebuttal  

testimony, would your answers be the same? 

A Yes . 
MR. BEASLEY: I ask tha t  M r .  Whale's testimony be 

inserted i n t o  the record - - 

CHAIRMAN JABER: The p r e f i l e d  rebut ta l  testimony o f  

W i l l i a m  T. Whale shal l  be inserted i n t o  the record as though 

read. 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q M r .  Whale, was the exh ib i t  i d e n t i f i e d  WTW-2 tha t  

accompanied your October 16th testimony, was t h a t  prepared 

under your d i  r e c t i  on and supervi s i  on? 

A Yes, si r .  
MR. BEASLEY: I ' d  ask tha t  Mr. Wha 

exh ib i t  be marked for i den t i f i ca t i on .  

e ' s  rebuttal  

CHAIRMAN JABER: WTW-2 w i l l  be marked as Exhibi t  38. 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
DOCKET NO. 030001-E1 

FILED: 10/16/03 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

PREPARED REBUTTAL TESTIMONY 

OF 

WILLIAM T. WHALE 

Please state your name, address, occupation and employer. 

My name is William T. Whale. My business address is 702 

North Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. I am employed 

by Tampa Elec t r ic  Company (“Tampa Electric’‘ or “company”) 

as Vice President, Energy Supply - Operations. 

Are you the same William T. Whale who filed direct 

testimony in this proceeding on September 12, 2 0 0 3 ?  

Yes, I am. 

Have you prepared an exhibit to support your testimony? 

Yes. Exhibit (WTW-21, consisting of two documents, 

was prepared under my direction and supervision. Document 

No. 1 is t i t l e d  “ 2 0 0 0 - 2 0 0 3  S a f e t y  Budget,” and Document 

N o .  2 is “Response to I n t e r r o g a t o r y  No. 3 7 . ”  

What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony? 
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A. 

Q- 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to address 

inaccurate statements and conclusions included in the 

direct testimonies of Mr. William Zaetz and Mr. Michael 

Majoros, testifying on behalf of the Office of Public 

Counsel. 

Is witness Zaetz qualified to make a determination as to 

the safe operational capability of the Gannon units? 

No. The documents submitted by Mr. Zaetz in support of 

his expertise indicate that he was a boilermaker fo r  33 

years and has never been a plant manager, maintenance 

manager or operations manager. In addition, there is no 

indication that he has experience in the decision-making 

process of determining when a unit would need to be shut 

down, whether for safety or any other reason. 

Furthermore, his testimony does not indicate that he is a 

Certified Safety Professional or has obtained any 

industry-recognized safety credentials. 

Does Mr. Zaetz‘s testimony indicate that he has a basic 

knowledge of the operations of Tampa Electric’s Gannon 

units? 

No. In fact, his testimony indicates the opposite. For 
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A.  

example, one safety concern Tampa Electric has cited has 

been the escape of harmful gases such as carbon monoxide 

into employee work areas. On page 5 of his' testimony Mr. 

Zaetz suggests that carbon monoxide production is an 

atypical event in boiler operations and that its presence 

in the Gannon units was caused by Tampa Electric's 

failure to perform adequate maintenance. In fact, 

harmful gases, including carbon monoxide, are produced as 

a normal part of the combustion process that takes place 

in boilers. Therefore, any leaks in the boiler walls and 

ductwork create a safety concern because they allow the 

gases to escape. 

On page 3, lines 13 through 16 of his testimony, Mr. Zaetz 

makes the statement that neither safety nor reliability 

was a factor in Tampa Electric's decision to shut down 

Gannon Units 1 through 4 in 2003. Is that correct? 

No, it is not correct. Tampa Electric arrived at the 

decision to shut down the Gannon units in 2003 after 

consideration of many complex f a c t o r s  including safety, 

reliability and other issues. As I stated on page 11 of 

my direct testimony, by late 2002 it became apparent that 

the units needed to be shut down in 2003 due primarily to 

four  factors: the declining availability and reliability 
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of the units; the significant expenditures that would need 

to be incurred in an effort to keep the units running 

Q. 

A. 

reliably; the potential f o r  safety incidents-; and, the 

short window of time until the units would be required to 

shut down under the Consent Final Judgment ("CF'S") and 

Consent Decree ("CD") I regardless of how much the company 

might invest in an effort to keep them operating. A 

formalized plan was developed that took into account all 

of these considerations. As a result of that plan, on 

February 6, 2003, Tampa Electric notified its employees 

that it planned to shut down Gannon Units 1 and 2 on March 

15, 2003 and Gannon Units 3 and 4 in September 2003. 

Tampa Electric a l so  began implementation of the final 

stages of its employee retraining and transition plan. 

On pages 7 and 8 of his testimony, Mr. Zaetz cites lack 

of bowl mill maintenance as a cause of the carbon 

monoxide that was escaping from Gannon Station through 

leaks in casings and ductwork. Is his statement correct? 

No, that statement is not correct. Mr. Zaetz quotes 

Karen Sheffield's deposition transcript at page 35. 

However, Ms. Sheffield's deposition statements were in 

reference to a section of the Big Bend Station business 

plan. (Deposition Transcript, p .  26, lines 2-3) The Big 
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units at that station, not’ about the Gannon units. In 

actuality, the boiler of Big Bend Unit 4 is t h e  only unit 

The in Tampa Electric’s system that h a s  bowl mills. 

boilers of Gannon Units 1 through 4 are cyclone-fired 

boilers, which do not have bowl mills. Gannon Units 5 

and 6 have Riley turbo-fired boilers, which also do not 

have bowl mills. 

Bend Station business plan contains information about the 

1 

Q. On page 4, lines 12 through 13 of his testimony, M r .  

Zaetz indicates that the increases in Tampa Electric‘s 

safety budgets f o r  Gannon Station from 2000 to 2002 

illustrate that the company’s biggest concern was 

budgetary. How do you respond? 

A. The safety budget f o r  Gannon Station increased during t h e  

period referenced by Mr. Zaetz for the implementation of 

a company-wide expanded safety initiative. The  purpose 

of the initiative was to improve safety at all of the 

company’s facilities. The initiative included t h e  hiring 

of Certified Safety Professionals as safety coordinators 

for each location as well as purchases of safety 

equipment and additional safety training. This is 

reflected in the costs included in the budget, shown in 

Document No. 1 of Exhibit - (WTW-2) , which included 
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Q. 

A. 

noise monitoring, chest x-rays, audiometric testing, drug 

testing, confined space rescue training and a station 

nurse. The station‘s safety budget does not fund the 

operations and maintenance of the units. 

What is your response to Mr. Zaetz’s assertions on page 

4, lines 5 through 9, and page 12, lines 12 through 17, 

that any plant can be repaired, regardless of its safety 

level, and that Tampa Electric’s failure to repair the 

aging Gannon facilities demonstrates that the company‘s 

concern about continuing to operate the units was truly 

and solely budgetary? 

Those assertions are not correct. The fact that a unit 

or plant may be repaired does not indicate that making 

the repairs is a good business decision. Given the ages 

and conditions of its various units and environmental and 

CD requirements, Tampa Electric was faced with a question 

of how to allocate maintenance funds prudently. Since 

Gannon Station would have to be shut down in the near 

term, regardless of the amounts of time and dollars spent 

repairing and maintaining it, Tampa Electric adopted a 

“patch and go” maintenance strategy to maximize the 

benefits of its maintenance spending. The company’s 

maintenance spending was re-focused on the activities 
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that would keep the Gannon units running safely for 

limited investment, and improve the operations of the 

company's other plants, which were not s u b j e c t  to 

Q m  

Q. 

shutdown on o r  before December 31, 2004. 

On page 8, lines 6 and 7, Mr. Zaetz s t a t e s ,  

Electric repeatedly disregarded reliability as an 

How do you respond? 

Mr. Zaetz's statement is without merit or fact. 

Electric considered the expected reliability 

"Tampa 

issue. " 

Tampa 

of t h e  

Gannon units at every step of the decision-making 

process. The company experienced many failures with 

these units that were directly related to the age of the 

units. As previously stated, cost-effective investments 

and the units' reliability were considered, along with 

many other factors, in determining the shutdown schedule 

of Gannon Units 1 through 4. 

The statements that Mr. Zaetz quotes from the deposition 

transcript of Craig Cameron, Director of Finance f o r  

Tampa Electric, to reach his conclusions are taken out  of 

context and mischaracterize Mr. Cameron's responses. Mr. 

Cameron was questioned about Gannon Station budget 

amounts that he compiled in August 2001. (Deposit ion 
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transcript, pages 31 through 32) First, August 2001 was 

earlier than the dates that the company began finalizing 

its shutdown plan for Gannon Station. Second, Mr. 

Q. 

A. 

Z a e t z  ignores the fact that Mr. Cameron’s role is to 

compile and manage the budgets created by the stations. 

When Mr. Cameron described his activities, he could not 

comment on what factors were included in setting the 

station’s budge t  because he is not responsible f o r  

operations nor does he make operational decisions. In 

r e a l i t y ,  Mr. Cameron’s testimony i n d i c a t e s  that he was 

working from a set of assumptions provided by the station 

management. These assumptions changed over time, 

particularly for Gannon Station, as I have previously 

described. The stations were responsible f o r  performing 

the analyses of safety, performance and other factors 

that affected the shutdown decision-making process that 

Mr. Cameron stated he did not perform. 

On page 9, lines 13 through 15 of his testimony, is Mr. 

Zaetz correct in his statement that, despite Tampa 

Electric‘s failure to spend adequate maintenance dollars, 

unit performance was not a valid reason for them to be 

shut down? 

No. The station’s equivalent availability factor (“EA,”) 
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A. 

declined from 1998 to 2002, as shown on page 3 of Exhibit 

- (WMZ-1). Tampa Electric took action to improve the 

availability of the units by operating the units during 

2001, 2002 and 2003 at a reduced header pressure compared 

to their design specifications. The shift to a "patch 

and go" style of maintenance was also designed to improve 

availability. This reduced the time the units were o f f -  

line f o r  planned maintenance. These actions were 

implemented with the knowledge that the units would be 

shut down due to the Consent Decree requirements and f o r  

the Bayside repowering project. 

On pages 9 through 10 of his testimony, Mr. Zaetz lists 

four data sources, which he claims demonstrate that unit 

performance was not the reason for the Gannon shutdown. 

Please describe the inaccuracies of Mr. Z a e t z ' s  

characterization of the first item listed in support of 

his assertion. 

Mr. Zaetz's first data source is a decline in the 

station's unplanned outage factor from 2000 to 2002. 

H o w e v e r ,  the information shown on page 4 of Exhibit - 

(WMZ-1) actually r e f l ec t s  an increase in the unplanned 

outage factor from 1998 to 2002. In 1998, the station's 

unplanned outage factor was 18.5 percent. In 2000, it 
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reached a five-year-period high of 35.6 percent. Mr. 

Zaetz chose to use the 2 0 0 0  value as his basis for 

comparison. Obviously, any time the highest value during 

a period is chosen as a baseline, there will be 

comparative reductions in the other years. Furthermore, 

the 2000 value was high due to a specific problem with a 

unit generator, not due to the 1999 explosion as Mr. 

Zaetz alleges. 

Upon review of the data for a more representative 

baseline, it is clear that the actual 2001 and expected 

2002 unplanned outage factors of 23.0 and 2 2 . 5  percent, 

respectively, were greater than the factors for 1998 and 

1999. The unplanned outage factor projected f o r  2003 was 

even higher at 30.3 percent. This shows an increasing 

t r e n d  f o r  t h e  station’s unplanned outage f a c t o r ,  which i s  

a significant availability issue. If units increasingly 

experience unplanned outages, the company’s ability to 

plan to meet generation and load requirements to serve 

its customers with economically priced generation and 

purchased power is significantly impacted, and t he  

company may be forced to purchase more expensive power in 

the wholesale market to replace the capacity of units 

that were forced out of service. 
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Q. 

A. 

Please describe the second item that Mr. Zaetz 

inaccurately cites in support of his allegations. 

Mr. Zaetz concludes that net capacity data included in 

the Gannon Station business plan support his position 

because the values do not show a large decline from 1998 

to 2002. However, a more thorough reading of page 6 of 

(WMZ-I) shows that it includes a definition of Exhibit 

net capacity, as “maximum dependable generation 

capabilities minus station service load. ” The net 

capacity rating shown here is different from the typical 

The operating capacity ratings of the Gannon units. 

maximum capacity is the capacity that the units could 

produce for a short period of time to meet peak load 

levels. Tampa Electric modified its operations and 

maintenance for the Gannon units as their conditions 

worsened in order to maximize their availability, 

especially during peak periods. F o r  example, by reducing 

the boiler operating pressure and thereby reducing the 

unit’s net capacity rating by a mere 10 MW, Tampa 

Electric could experience an increase of as much as five 

to 10 percentage points in the unit‘s reliability. 

- 

Mr. Zaetz also cites the net generation values shown on 

(WMZ-1) to support his argument. page 7 of Exhibit - 

11 
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shifting to a “patch and go” maintenance approach, 

specifically to enhance the station’s availability, was 

successful. 

A. 

What is the third inaccurate statement that Mr. Z a e t z  

made in support of his conclusion? 

Mr. Zaetz 

factor. A 

ava i 1 abi 1 i ti 

cites the station‘s on-peak availability 

reference to the definition of the on-peak 

- factor provided on page 9 of Exhibit 

(WMZ-1) shows that Mr. Zaetz mischaracterizes the data.  

On-peak availability factor is defined as, “The on-peak 

availability factor is based on peak hours instead of 

period hours. Peak hours occur when native load is 

greater than 2,900 MW.” Due to the load level criterion 

applied to this data, the number of hours that the data 

represents is necessarily small. As previously stated, 

Tampa Electric made a concerted effort to maximize the 

units’ availability, especially during peak periods. 

Consequently, the on-peak availability factor data again 

simply demonstrate the success of the company‘s 

strategies. 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Finally, please describe Mr. Zaetz's fourth improper 

characterization. 

At page 10 of his testimony Mr. Zaetz implies that 

because the station's performance was meeting 

expectations, performance was not the reason f o r  the 

units' shutdown. In actuality, Tampa Electric adjusted 

its methods of operating the units as well as its 

expectations of t h e  units' performances to more 

accurately reflect their aged conditions and declining 

reliabilities. It would be ridiculous for the company 

not to have adjusted its expectations. To not do so, 

would have meant that Tampa Electric simply ignored the 

reliability issues that the station experienced. In 

f a c t ,  Tampa Electric both recognized the issues and 

planned and implemented strategies to respond to these 

reliability and availability issues. 

Mr. Zaetz indicates on page 8 of his testimony that the 

units' reliability could have and s h o u l d  have been 

improved by simply fixing t he  tube leaks. Would this 

strategy have resolved the station's reliability issues? 

No. As shown in Exhibit (WTW-l), Document No. 1, 

Page 1 of my direct testimony, Tampa Electric fixed over 
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1,000 tube leaks in the boilers of Gannon Units 1 through 

4 during 2002, and it utilized repair techniques such as 

pad welding, dutchmen, window welds and replacement of 

complete tube sections when necessary. Tampa Electric 

a lso  attempted to manage and enhance reliability by 

running the Gannon units at reduced header pressure, 

which reduced the internal steam pressure in the boiler 

tubes and decreased the likelihood of tube failures due 

to material degradation and thinning that has reduced the 

tubes' ability to withstand pressure. Despite these 

actions, the frequency and number of boiler tube leaks 

increased. The tube metal had also degraded over time 

with normal use. The boiler tubes reached a point where 

repair procedures were no longer effective, and complete 

boiler component replacement was required. However, 

given that the units would be required to be shut down in 

the near term and due to the significant planned outage 

time necessary to install replacement components, this 

was not a cost-effective alternative. 
/ 

Is it typical to conduct a hydrostatic test that requires 

the unit to hold one and one half times its operating 

pressure after boiler tube repairs are made as Mr. Zaetz 

asserts on page 9 of his testimony? 
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No, it is not typical for older units. The hydrostatic 

test to determine if the unit will hold one and one half 

times its operating pressure is typical of: new 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

construct ion. For older units, a hydrostatic test to 

determine if the unit will merely hold its operating 

pressure is typical. It is not reasonable to expect 

units of t h e  Gannon units’ ages to be in like-new 

condition or to operate as if they are brand-new units. 

Did the units experience equipment reliability problems 

in areas other than the boiler tubes? 

Yes. Although Mr. Zaetz focuses only on the boiler tube 

leaks, his proposed solution to that problem would not 

have resolved the units’ o t h e r  reliability problems. The 

units were experiencing problems with several other types 

of equipment, including the feedwater heaters, the steam 

turbines, the control wiring, leaks in the duct system 

leading to and from the boilers and structural steel 

deterioration. To correct these problems would have 

required major capital expenditures and component 

replacements. Some of the items would require long lead 

times, up to six months, to obtain replacement equipment, 

along with major planned outages to complete the work. 

If these repairs were made, the planned outage time, in 

15 
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conjunction with the shutdown requirement mandated by the 

Consent Decree, would have left very little time to 

recoup any of the benefits of that investment. As the 

company previously stated, the short remaining life of 

the units meant that large investments f o r  repairs were 

no longer cost-effective. 

A r e  repair costs the only costs that Tampa Electric would 

have incurred in order to improve the safety and 

reliability of the Gannon units? 

No. Tampa Electric would have had to spend significant 

time and dollars planning outages to repair and replace 

components, procuring replacement equipment, installing 

the new equipment and replacing capacity of the affected 

units while they were off-line f o r  the planned outages. 

At page 11 of his testimony, Mr. Zaetz says that Tampa 

Electric's $57 million estimate to keep Gannon running 

through 2004 is unrealistic. How do you respond? 

First, Mr. Zaetz misstates the amount as $53 million. As 

shown in Document No. 2 of Exhibit - (WTW-2) , Tampa 

Electric stated that the expected operations and 

maintenance ("O&M") costs range from $37 million to $57 
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million to keep Gannon Units 1 through 4 running through 

Q .  

A. 

2004, assuming a 60 percent and 85 percent availability, 

respectively. Tampa Electric did not determine that the 

units were not reliable solely based on an 8 5  percent 

availability criterion. Even the expected costs to 

maintain 60 percent availability are significant. 

Sinking capital into aged units that must soon be shut 

down is not an efficient or cost-effective use of 

capital, which apparently Mr. Zaetz ignores. As with any 

business, there are limits on the company's ability to 

spend, whether for maintenance or any other item. 

Consequently, Tampa Electric strives to maximize the 

benefits of its expenditures. 

What is your overall assessment of Mr. Zaetz's testimony? 

Mr. Zaetz reaches the erroneous conclusion that 

preventive boiler maintenance is a cure for a l l  the 

issues facing Gannon Station without demonstrating any 

knowledge as to t h e  particular operational 

characteristics or maintenance requirements of Gannon 

Units 1 through 4. Mr. Zaetz also ignores the 

requirements of the CD and CFJ to shut down the Gannon 

units in the near future. He a lso  ignores the fact that 

even if Tampa Electric invested large amounts in the 
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Gannon units, there would be little time remaining for 

the company to recoup any of its investments, given the 

required outage time to make repairs and replace 

Q. 

A. 

components and the shutdown deadline. Tampa Electric 

appropriately took into account safety, reliability and 

other factors in deciding to shut down the units. The 

company has made a prudent business decision, and Mr. 

Zaetz has neither the knowledge of the Gannon units nor 

knowledge of Tampa Electric's shutdown decision process 

to characterize the decision as solely budgetary and 

self-interested. 

Does the testimony of Mr. Majoros incorrectly characterize 

Tampa Electric's actions? 

Yes. First, Mr. Majoros claims, on page 7 of his 

testimony, that Tampa Electric's current schedule for 

shutting down Gannon Units 1 through 4 in 2003 was 

fostered by economic considerations and the desire to 

avoid capital or O&M expenses. As I have previously 

stated, Tampa Electric's decision to s h u t  down the Gannon 

units in 2003 was driven primarily by four factors: the 

declining availability and reliability of the units; the 

significant expenditures that would need to be incurred in 

an effort to keep the units running reliably; the 
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potential f o r  safety incidents; and, the short  window of 

time until the units would be required to shut down, 

regardless of how much the company might invest :in an 

Q- 

A. 

effort to keep them operating. 

How would you describe Mr. Majoros’s approach i n  relating 

how Tampa Electric should have conducted its business, and 

in particular how the company should have operated Gannon 

Units 1 through 4?  

Mr. Majoros’s approach appears to be that Tampa Elec t r i c  

should ignore such factors as safety, reliability and 

operational constraints and to throw whatever amount of 

capital may be required into operating Gannon Units 1 

through 4 through December 31, 2004, without any regard to 

how impracticable that approach is or how inconsistent it 

is with the realities associated with making an orderly 

transition to natural gas-fired generation. In addition, 

although Mr. Majoros purports to have an expert 

perspective on this issue, his testimony does not address 

any specific f a c t s  relating to Gannon Station, nor does he 

have any independent knowledge as to the safety, 

reliability and other operational constraints associated 

with continuing to operate Gannon Units 1 through 4. 
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Did Tampa Electric ever have a plan to run Gannon Units 1 

through 4 up to the December 31, 2004 deadline for 

ceasing coal-fired generation at Gannon Station-? 

Q *  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

No. As I described in my direct testimony, Tampa 

Electric is required by the Consent Decree to shut down 

or repower all Gannon units no later than December 31, 

2004. However, the company never had a plan to operate 

the units until that date. Tampa Electric always 

r e c o g n i z e d  that the u n i t s ’  shutdown would r e q u i r e  

flexibility to respond to dynamic conditions as the 

deadline approached. T h e  company appropriately refined 

the shutdown schedule and transition plan to reflect 

current conditions, resulting i n  Tampa Electric’s 

adoption of the current shutdown schedule. 

Mr. Majoros, at pages 8 and 9, criticizes the company‘s 

$57 million cost estimate to keep Gannon Units 1 through 

4 operating through 2004. How do you respond? 

Tampa Electric’s estimates of the 06M investments needed 

to keep Gannon Units 1 through 4 until December 31, 2004 

show a range of costs to achieve different availability 

levels. The costs range from $37 million to $57 million, 

to achieve an approximate 60 percent and 85 percent 

2 0  
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Q. 

A. 

availability, respectively. As I have previously stated, 

keeping the units running through 2004 would be a very 

expensive proposition under either scenario, after- which 

Tampa Electric would have nothing to show for the 

expenditures because the  units would no longer be 

permitted to burn coal. 

Does this conclude your rebuttal testimony? 

Yes it does. 
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BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Mr. Whale, would you summarize your rebuttal  

testimony, please? 

A Yes, s i r .  Good afternoon, Commissioners. I ' m  B i l l  

Whale, v ice president o f  energy supply operations. f o r  Tampa 

E lec t r i c .  My rebut ta l  testimony addresses cer ta in  inaccurate 

statements and conclusions- included i n  the testimonies o f  

Mr. W i l l i a m  Zaetz and Mr. Michael Majoros t e s t i f y i n g  on behalf 

o f  the Of f ice o f  Pub1 i c  Counsel . 
M r .  Zaetz has stated i n  h i s  testimony tha t  Tampa 

E l e c t r i c ' s  decision t o  shut down Gannon stat ion was so le ly  

budgetary. He also s t a t e s  tha t  the company's decision was not 

based on safety  or r e l i a b i l i t y .  These statements are 

inaccurate. I n  addi t ion,  I do not bel ieve tha t  Mr. Zaetz i s  

qua l i f ied  t o  make a determination as t o  whether the Gannon 

uni ts  experienced s i  gni f i  cant safety  or re1 i abi 1 i t y  i ssues, nor 

i s  he qua l i f ied  t o  s ta te tha t  the company's decision was so le ly  

budgetary because he does not have experience i n  operating a 

plant,  budgeting f o r  the operations and maintenance o f  a p lant,  

or  deciding i f  or when a u n i t  o r  a s ta t ion  should be shut down. 

The information c i ted  by Mr. Zaetz i n  support o f  h i s  

pos i t ion i s  incor rec t ly  stated or taken out o f  context and 

misinterpreted. The Gannon stat ion has been i n  operation f o r  

46 years. 

operate as a new f a c i l i t y  might. 

I t  i s  an aged f a c i l i t y  tha t  cannot be expected t o  

I n  addit ion, Gannon s ta t ion 's  
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performance decl i nes occurred despite Tampa E l  ectri c I s 
multitude of repairs and creation o f  operational strategies t o  
respond t o  the performance and safety issues. Mr. Zaetz's 
testimony t h a t  u n i t  performance was not a factor i n  Tampa 

Electric's decision is  simply incorrect. My testimony 
addresses Mr . Zaetz s inaccurate concl usions and statements i n  

detail . 
Witness Ma joros incorrectly concl udes t h a t  Tampa 

Electric's schedule f o r  shut t ing  down Gannon s t a t i o n  was 
determined by the sole desire t o  avoid capital or  operating and 

maintenance expenses. In fact, as I stated i n  my direct 
testimony, the company's decision was made after careful and 

deliberate consideration of many facts. Tampa Electric 
balanced competing constraints as i t ' s  tried t o  keep the units 
running as long and safely as possible while also making sound 
operating and business decisions. 

Mr . Ma joros I s approach d i  smi sses Tampa E l  ectri c '  s 
significance and concerns regarding t o  continue operation of 

the Gannon units i n  the areas o f  safety, reliability, 
operational constraints, and ignores the requirements for the 
units t o  cease burning coal. He also ignores the need the 
company had t o  smoothly transition t o  operate i n  a natural 
gas-fired power p l a n t .  His  approach is  not a sound approach. 

Tampa El ectri c s deci si on t o  shut down Gannon Units 
1 through 4 was based on careful consideration o f  many complex 
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factors. The company acted prudently. And both M r .  Zaetz 's  

and Mr . Ma joros ' s i ncorrect statements and concl usi ons shoul d 

be d i  sregarded. That concl udes my summary. 

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. We tender the witness f o r  

questions. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r  . Vandi ver . 
CROSS EXAM I NAT I ON 

BY MR. VANDIVER: 

Q Good afternoon, M r .  Whale. 

A Good afternoon. 

Q M r .  Whale, we're going t o  hand out an exh ib i t ,  and 

I ' d  l i k e  t o  get t ha t  - -  a number f o r  tha t ,  I believe. 

MR. VANDIVER: What's the next number, please, Madam 

Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN JABER: It looks l i k e  i t ' s  OPC's second 

request f o r  production o f  document Number 20. 

response t o  that? 

I s  t h i s  TECO's 

MR. VANDIVER: Yes, i t  i s .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. TECO's response t o  OPC's POD 

Number 20 will be i d e n t i f i e d  as Exhibi t  39. 

(Exhi b i  t 39 marked f o r  i denti f i ca t i  on. ) 
BY MR. VANDIVER: 

Q Okay. Before we get t o  t h a t  Mr. Whale, a t  Page 3 of 

your testimony, s ta r t i ng  a t  Lines 22, you c i t e  decl in ing 

avai  1 abi 1 i ty,  re1 i abi 1 i ty,  the cost t o  keep Gannon running, and 
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the potent ia l  f o r  safety incidents - -  

A Correct. 

Q - -  as the four pr incipal  reasons f o r  closing-down 

3annon; i s  t ha t  correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And I ' d  l i k e  f o r  you t o  i d e n t i f y  the document t h a t ' s  

3een i d e n t i f i e d  as E x h i b i t  37 - -  i s  t h a t  correct ,  Commissioner? 

CHAIRMAN JABER: 39. 

Q - -  39. And t h i s  i s  a conf ident ia l  document, s i r ,  and 

so I don ' t  want t o  verbalize the exact verbiage, but can you 

t e l l  me bas ica l l y  what t h i s  document i s ,  s i r ?  

A Give me a minute here. I j u s t  got it. 

Q Sure th ing. 

My questions re la te  p r imar i l y  t o  t h a t  f i r s t  page, 

Mr. Whale, the 3278. 

A Okay. I got that .  

Q What's 3278? I believe t h i s  i s  a performance 

evaluation f o r  Mr. Maye, i s  i t  not? 

A That 's correct. 

Q You prepared t h i s  performance evaluation, d i d  you 

not? 
A No, I d i d  not. 

Q 

A 

up. This i s  not the performance evaluation form because tha t  

Do you know who did? 

This i s  a s ta t ion  scorecard t h a t  the s ta t ion  keeps 
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evaluation i s  the DEP form i n  the attached. 

Q Okay. But t h i s  i s  the s ta t ion  scorecard f o r  Gannon 

stat ion,  i s  i t  not? 

A For 2003, yes, i t  was. . 

Q Okay. And t h i s  i s  the same Gannon s ta t i on  t h a t ' s  

re fer red t o  i n  your testimony tha t  we j u s t  ta lked about on 

Page 3, i s  i t  not? 

A Yes, i t  i s .  

Q Okay. And as I reca l l  - -  I wou d l i k e  t o  focus 

s p e c i f i c a l l y  on OPA, and i t  looks l i k e  - -  we l l ,  l e t ' s  s t a r t  a t  

safety a t  the top.  
achieving i t s  targets, i s  i t  not? 

I t  looks l i k e  i t ' s  achieving - -  Gannon i s  

A This was through - - I don' t  see a date. It says year 

t o  date. 

Q Down a t  the bottom, s i r .  

A 

Q Yes, s i r .  

A 

Q Yes, s i r .  And Gannon 1 and 2 was shut down on what 

I see a t  the bottom i t  says through May. 

So through May they were making t h e i r  goal. 

date, s i r ?  Was i t  Apr i l  7th and - - 
A A p r i l .  

Q Okay. 

A No, i t  wasn't Ap r i l  17th. I t  was A p r i l  7 th  and Apr i l  

9th. 

Q Okay. And as I reca l l ,  EAF, i n  your mind, was the 
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most important re1 i abi 1 i t y  factor:  i s  tha t  correct? 

A That 's correct. 

Q 

A Yes, i t  i s .  

Q Okay, s i r .  

And again, Gannon's -achieving that? 

A That 's Gannon stat ion t o t a l .  

Q Yes, s i r .  And Mr. Maye's opinion we reca l l  from h is  

deposition, an e a r l i e r  encounter, h i s  opinion was tha t  OPA was 

the most important one. 

A 

Q Yes, s i r .  I appreciate that .  I don ' t  always agree 

M r .  Maye and I don't always agree on everything. 

w i th  my boss ei ther ,  so. 

A That 's r i g h t .  

Q But again - -  
CHAIRMAN JABER: Who's not s i t t i n g  i n  the back o f  the 

room. 
MR. VANDIVER: I hear you, Ms. Jaber. 

BY MR. VANDIVER: 

Q OPA, i t  looks l i k e  Gannon i s  meeting i t s  goals again, 

would you agree? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. This looks l i k e  a p re t t y  good scorecard j u s t  

going down those - - again, the four indices you had c i ted,  

safety, r e l i a b i l i t y ,  a v a i l a b i l i t y ,  would you agree w i th  me tha t  

i t ' s  h i t t i n g  a l l  o f  those indices, i s n ' t  it? 
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s were adjusted t o  the - -  where we - -  you 

the s ta t ion  as i t ' s  going t o  continue i t s  

operation, adjust those goals -wi th tha t  i n  mind. 

Q All r i g h t ,  s i r .  Could.we go t o  3285, s i r ?  And t h i s  

i s  a very s i m i l a r  scorecard f o r  Gannon again, i sn ' t  it, s i r ?  

A That's correct .  

Q And 2002 - -  
A Through December. 

Q Yes, s i r .  And not t o  belabor it, but again, we have 

Gannon meeting the safety goals, the ger erat ion goals, and the 

OPA goals. Would you agree w i th  me, s i r ?  

A Yes, i t  i s  making i t s  goals. 

Q And I 'm seeing a l o t  more yeses than nos f o r  meeting 

goals f o r  Gannon stat ion.  Again, and I'm th ink ing r e l i a b i l i t y ,  

safety, a v a i l a b i l i t y ,  those four things you c i t e d  i n  your 

testimony f o r  Gannon stat ion.  Would you agree w i th  me, s i r ?  

A I t  i s  meeting i t s  goals, yes, i t  i s .  

MR. VANDIVER: Yes, s i r .  That 's a l l  the questions I 

have, Mr. Whales. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r  . LaFace. 

MR. LaFACE: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: S t a f f .  

MR. KEATING: Just a few questions. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KEATING: 
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d tu rn  t o  Page 17 o f  your 

s ta r t ing  a t  Line 7, you state 

that sinking capital i n t o  aged un i ts  tha t  must soon b e  shut 

down i s  not an e f f i c i e n t  or cost ref fect ive use o f  capi ta l .  

Could you explain why t h a t ' s  not an e f f i c i e n t  or  .cost-ef fect ive 

use o f  capital t o  keep Gannon operating u n t i l  the end of-2004? 

A V i e w  capital as -a major component, those being the 

cyclone repairs. Those are major capi ta l  pieces that  again you 

i d e n t i f y  It as capi ta l ,  and i t  would not have the 1 i f e  - - the 

u n i t  would not be able t o  run long enough t o  get the l i f e  out 

o f  tha t  par t icu lar  component tha t  you replaced. I guess i t  

would be l i k e  buying new t i r e s  on a car that  you're going t o  

end up scrapping i n  another s i x  months. That's not an 

ef fect ive way as f a r  as using tha t  money. 

Q Is i t  not e f f i c i e n t  or cost-ef fect ive because there 

would be only one year t o  recover the cost o f  capital 

rep1 acement items? 

A 

component. Yes, you ' d cease operati on. 

Basical ly you would get one more year out o f  that  

Q Now, Page 16 o f  your testimony, s ta r t ing  on Line 24, 

you t e s t i f i e d  that  i t  would have cost between 37 m i l l i o n  and 57 

m i l l i o n  t o  keep Gannon operating u n t i l  the end 2004; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q What was the incremental cost o f  the replacement 

capacity and energy purchased by TECO i n  1 ieu o f  operating 
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Gannon until the end of 2004? 

A 

Q 
I don' t  know that figure. 
Have Tampa Electric3 ratepayers paid more i n  fuel 

adjustment charges because o f  TECO s deci si on to shut down 
Gannon when it did rather than operate i t  until the end of 
2004? 

A Again, that's not my area o f  responsibility or 
experti se 

Q Has Tampa Electric performed any cost-effectiveness 
analyses o f  its decision to shut down Gannon when it did and 
buy rep1 acement capacity and energy? 

A Again, I did not look a t  replacement power. 

Q A t  Page 6 o f  your rebuttal testimony, starting a t  

Line 24, you discuss Tampa Electric's strategy regarding the  

expenditure of O&M dollars on Gannon and Tampa Electric's other 
units. 

A I'm sorry, Page 6, which line? 
Q Beginning at Line 24 and then continuing on t o  the 

top o f  Page 7. 
A Yes, sir. 
Q What do you mean when you say, "improve the 

operations of the company's other plants"? 
A Basically we're reallocating the dollars in the 

budget that we had. The dollars that would not be spent at 
Gannon were reallocated as far as spending at Big Bend. And 
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you see our budget l i n e ,  bas ica l ly  we had some f luctuat ions,  

out the sum stayed the same, and so those do l la rs  t h a t  would 

not be spent a t  Gannon would be spent a t  Big Bend or P o l  k. 

If  those dol lars  a ren ' t  spent on other un i ts ,  do Q 
Tampa E l e c t r i c ' s  shareholders benef i t  from the 37. m i l l i o n  t o  

57 m i  11 ion  t h a t ' s  not spent on Gannon? 

A And 1 've never - - as Madam Chairman pointed out, I ' ve  

exceeded my budget every year, so I haven't had a savings i n  a 

sense. I ' m  always having t o  go back and f i n d  addit ional funds 

from other sources t o  support tha t  - -  support the operation. 

Q But i f  you somehow managed t o  come under the budget, 

would TECO's shareholders benef i t  from any amounts not spent on 

Gannon? 

A Again, I j u s t  worry about my par t i cu la r  budget and 

how i t  r o l l s  i n t o  the Tampa E lec t r i c  - - 

Q And I guess I j us t  want t o  get a yes-or-no answer, 

and i f  you don ' t  know the answer, t h a t ' s  f ine ,  but I would ask 

again, i f  the money - - the $37 m i l  1 i on  t o  $57 mil 1 ion saved on 
Gannon, i f  not a l l  o f  tha t  i s  used f o r  other un i ts ,  would tha t  

money be t o  Tampa E lec t r i c  shareholders ' benef i t? 

A It was never budgeted. So I know you asked f o r  a 

yes-or-no question ( s i c ) ,  but i t  was never budgeted there, so. 

It wasn't there. 

Q I f  those amounts weren't budgeted, do Tampa 

E l e c t r i c ' s  shareholders benef i t? 
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A I don' t  know because the whole budget - - you know, I 

j o n ' t  know what the who1 e budget would look 1 i ke. 

MR. KEATING: Thank-you. That 's a l l  the questions I 

lave. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners. 

M r  . Beasl ey, red i  rec t  . 
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Chai man. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Oh, I ' m  sorry. Commissioner 

l a v i  dson . 
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you, Chairman. I f  you 

Mould, please, t u r n  t o  Page 18 o f  your rebut ta l  testimony, the 

1 ast paragraph beginning w i th  the word "as. 'I I n  t h a t  paragraph 

running over t o  Page 19, you i d e n t i f y  four factors tha t  drove 

TECO's decision t o  shut down the Gannon un i t s  i n  2003. 

I f  you could, t u rn  t o  the - -  keep t h a t  testimony 

open, t u r n  t o  the conf ident ia l  exh ib i t  t h a t  was handed out by 

Off ice o f  Public Counsel, and spec i f i ca l l y  I 'm going t o  ask you 

t o  make ready reference t o  three pages: Page 3278, which i s  

the tab le  o f  the Gannon/Bayside 2003 goals; Page 3285, the 

Gannon s ta t ion  2002 goals; and the 3291 Gannon s ta t ion  2001 

goals; and there's a 32 - - I apologize, 3297 a1 so which appear 

t o  be Gannon s ta t ion  2001 goals. 

Using those three scorecards, and i f  there are  other 

scorecards i n  tha t  document tha t  are useful, j u s t  l e t  me know, 

but using those three documents, please po in t  us t o  the 
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information f o r  2001, 2002, 2003 tha t  would support each o f  

:hose four factors. Your f i r s t  one, for example, i s  the 

lec l in ing a v a i l a b i l i t y  and r e l - i a b i l i t y  o f  the uni ts .  Give us 

;he information on those scorecards tha t  allow us t o  see i n  

ib j e c t i  ve measures what TECO saw as the decl i n i  ng avai 1 abi 1 i t y  

md r e l i a b i l i t y  o f  the uni ts .  And i f  you need t o  j u s t  r i p  tha t  

?xhi b i  t apart, t h a t  ' s fine-. 

Sorry, OPC, f o r  destroying your exh ib i t .  

MR. VANDIVER: Just as long as we get i t  back, s i r .  

THE WITNESS: What I'm t ry ing t o  correlate,  

:ommissioner, why i t ' s  taking some time i s  the goals weren't 

:he same f o r  each year. The f i r s t  one I can take i s  the safety 

j ide, and, you know, the s ta t ion  was performing be t te r  on the 

safety side. We i n s t i t u t e  a major program as f a r  as 

i n s t i t u t i n g  safety, and the other th ing  i s  we don ' t  use 

incidences as a measure o f  safety. We use more o f  the near 

nisses and those rates and i n  looking a t  what incidences 

iccurred and avo1 d havi ng recordabl es . 
COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: I n  terms o f  what appears on 

th is  document t o  the person reading these documents, does i t  

ippear t h a t  from 2001 t o  2003 Gannon i n  terms o f  the safety 

,neasure ac tua l l y  improved? 

THE WITNESS: It appears i t  improved, yes. The 

number o f  i nci  dences dropped. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: And j u s t  on tha t  issue, given 
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;hat safety has been given as a fundamental reason f o r  TECO's 

lecision t o  close the plant,  walk me through - - help me 

inderstand the process by which we reconci le your statement 

that based on t h i s  data safety appears t o  have improved w i th  

the decision t o  close f o r  deter iorat ing safety. . 

THE WITNESS: Sure. Safety I - you can use 

pecordables as a measure of safety, and tha t  i s  recording the 

rlumber o f  events t h a t  actua l ly  happen, and - -  which we t ry  t o  

De as proactive on the f ron t  end as f a r  as preventing the 

accident before i t  actual ly  happens. 

tube leaks. We can w a i t  u n t i l  one ac tua l l y  happens, and then 

say, we've got t o  address that ,  or we've got t o  look a t  it, 

i d e n t i f y  the r i s k  and mit igate tha t  r i s k  away. 

I'll take the external 

Gannon s ta t i on  had a major safety incident i n  

1999 where several f a t a l i t i e s  occurred, and we r e a l l y  

readjusted how we looked a t  i t  and saying, how do we minimize 

and reduce the safety r i s k .  T h a t ' s  one o f  the reasons why we 

went t o  the reduce header operation. 

The s t ructura l  steel areas, we had several cases 

where an indiv idual  stepped through the grating, so we blocked 

those areas o f f  . The gas leaks, we brought i n  monitors t o  put 

i n  the control room t o  make sure tha t  i f  the monitor went o f f ,  

the indiv idual  cleared out o f  the control room. We d i d n ' t  have 

those par t i cu la r  too ls  a t  tha t  time. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: On the next category on the 
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2003 scorecard, Page 3278, i s  environmental. Can you t e l l  us 

how the Gannon un i t s  performed from 2001 t o  2003 using tha t  

measure, the environmental measure? Did the Gannon un i ts  

improve or deter iorate based on the information provided 

herein? 

THE WITNESS: Basical ly i t  deteriorated i n  2002.. 

They d i d  not make t h e i r  goal i n  2002. And 2003 year t o  date, 

and again I ' m  taking a - - 2003 i s  t o  May. 2001 and 2002 are 12 

months o f  data. So we don ' t  have an apples-to-apples 

comparison here. But i n  2002 there appear t o  be e ight  

environmental incidences a t  Gannon stat ion,  and i n  2001 they 

had zero; 2003 they had zero up t o  May. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: And l e t  me j u s t  ask about two 

more measures tha t  have been mentioned. F i r s t ,  OPA, i f  you 

could give the same analysis, 2001 t o  2003, and then EAF, 2001 

t o  2003. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And i f  I could j u s t  in te r rup t  the 

witness. Ea r l i e r  i t  was represented tha t  t h i s  was a 

conf ident ia l  document. M r .  Beasley, I don't know - -  i s  the 

en t i re  document conf ident ia l  or  the numbers? Just caution your 

witness - -  remind him what i s  exact ly conf ident ia l  before we 

answer t h a t  question. 

MR. BEASLEY: The numbers and not the categories. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And you heard Commi ssi  oner 

Davidson's question. You can respond t o  tha t  without g iv ing  
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Mhat the numbers are? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am. OPA i s  improving a t  Gannon 

from 2001 and 2003. And what -was supportive o f  t h i s  - - why 

t h i s  would be occurring i s  because o f  the f a c t  o f  the patch and 

go which l e t  the u n i t  be avai lable when a peak came i n .  We 

dould go in ,  do the repai r  and get the u n i t  back on f o r  fhe 

s i x  months' worth o f  data peak. Again, t h i s  i s  - -  2003 i s  

versus 12 months' 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON : 

THE WITNESS: EAF i s  n 

And f o r  EAF, please. 

t stated on the 2001 goals. 

It i s  not stated on the 2002 goals. 

and i t  was - -  had a goal o f  63 - -  I won't s ta te the numbers. 

It i s  stated on the 2003, 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Whale, the question related t o  

can you represent how the company performed as i t  re la tes t o  

EAF i n  a general fashion. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, i t  did.  EAF f o r  Gannon 1 through 

4 deteriorated. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: Thank you. That 's a l l  I had, 

Chai rman. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Redirect M r .  Beasley? 

MR. BEASLEY: Yes, ma'am. 

RED1 RECT EXAM I NATION 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q M r .  Whale, when the goals were se t  f o r  2003, do you 

know when tha t  was, what time frame t h a t  would have been? 
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A No, I do not remember when the goals were set f o r  

?003. 

Q Were the goals set  i n  l i g h t  o f  the condit ion- tha t  the 

i n i t s  were i n  when the goals were set? 

A Yes, they were. 

Q What would the goals have been, say, ten years- 

2ar l ie r  f o r  these uni ts? 

A Ten years e a r l i e r ,  the goals f o r  the a v a i l a b i l i t y  f o r  

EAF would have been i n  the mid-80s; OPA we did not measure a t  

that  time; environmental we always shoot for zero on a goal; 

and the safety incident a t  tha t  time, I don ' t  know what the 

ra te  was a t  tha t  time. 

Q Well, i n  the l a s t  three years, has i t  been easy fo r  

M r .  Maye and h i s  s t a f f  t o  meet the goals tha t  have been set f o r  

them out a t  Gannon stat ion? 

A No. They've been very challenging. We set 

chal lenging goals f o r  them. 

Q Well, can you give us an example w i th  respect t o  

these un i t s  back i n  March? And I believe I would be re fe r r ing  

t o  Gannon Units 1 and 2 and the e f f o r t s  tha t  were made t o  keep 

those un i t s  running. 

A Yes. Gannon 1 and 2, again, we were doing a patch 

and go t o  t r y  t o  keep them running. The reason why we d i d n ' t  

shut down on the 15th was because there was needs tha t  - -  we 

had some warmer weather coming in, we had some outages tha t  
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xcurred.  And those par t i cu la r  un i ts ,  we kept them running, 

then we shut them down. There seemed t o  be a c a l l  t ha t  one of 

the Seminole un i ts  came down, -and we ca l led and asked them t o  

put them back on. They d id  get out there. They d i d  get them 

back on, but they only lasted a couple o f  days, and they came 

back o f f  again wi th  forced outages. 

Q Did you have t o  s t a r t  them up again a f t e r  t ha t  for 
any pa r t i cu la r  reason? 

A Not a f t e r  Ap r i l  . 
Q 

A 

And d id  you do some stack welding a t  Gannon stat ion? 

Yes, we do pad welding tha t  i s  par t  o f  the patch and 

go i n  the bo i l e r  tubes. You go i n ,  you open a door, you f i nd  

the leak, the welder can get i n  there and put a pad weld on the 

tube. 

close the door and get the un i t  back on- l ine .  

It's a patch and go. I t  l e t ' s  the welder get back out, 

Q M r .  Whale, i f  you avoided spending cer ta in  O&M 

do l la rs  on the Gannon un i ts  and you instead took those dol lars  

and applied them t o  programs a t  your other generating stat ions 

t o  enhance those programs and make them work be t te r ,  would 

there be any benef i t  from those dol lars  t o  the shareholders o f  

Tampa E l e c t r i c  Company? Do you understand my question? 

A Those costs would be t o  keep the u n i t s  running and 

again t o  meet the needs o f  the customers, so I don' t  know 

because my par t i cu la r  pos i t ion i s  the operations. 

Q We1 1 , i f  your overa l l  energy supply O&M do l lars  i s  
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roughly the same as between two years bu t  i n  the f i r s t  year 

you're applying a good port ion o f  those do l la rs  t o  the O&M 

expenses associated w i th  Gannon stat ion but i n  the next year 

instead o f  spending tha t  money on Gannon stat ion,  you're 

spending i t  on your other generating plants a t  your other 

stat ions, i s  there any benef i t  t o  the shareholders when you're 

spending the same amount of money on O&M? 

A No, I t h ink  i t ' s  neutral.  

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. I ' d  l i k e  t o  move the 

Exhibi t  38. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Exhibi t  - -  what, M r .  Vandiver? 

MR. VANDIVER: 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Oh, okay. Without objection, 

I was going t o  move fo r  39. 

Exhib i t  38 i s  admitted i n t o  the record. And without objection, 

Exhibi t  39 i s  admitted i n t o  the record. 

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. 

(Exhi b i t s  38 and 39 admitted i n t o  the record. ) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, s i r ,  f o r  your testimony. 

(Witness excused. ) 

CHAIRMAN JASER: And, M r .  Beasley, t ha t  takes us t o  

Ms. Jordan's rebut ta l  . 
MR. BEASLEY: Ms. Jordan. 

3. DENISE JORDAN 

was ca l led as a rebut ta l  witness on behalf o f  Tampa E lec t r i c  

ows : Company and, having been duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as f o l  
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DIRECT EXAM I NATION 

3Y MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Ms. Jordan, d i d  you-prepare and submit rebutta'  

testimony i n  t h i s  proceeding on October 16, 2003? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Did you also submit revised rebuttal  testimony 

qovember 7, 2003? 

A Yes 

on 

Q Can you t e l l  us what the nature o f  the revisions i n  

that testimony were? 

A Yes, sir. 
CHAIRMAN JABER: Give me the dates, again, 

Mr. Beasley. 

MR. BEASLEY: October 16th was the or ig ina l  f i l i n g ,  

and t h a t ' s  when i t  was due. And then she f i l e d  revisions on 
November 7. Mr. W i l l i s  has copies o f  the revised rebut ta l  

t e s t  i mony . 
CHAIRMAN JABER: I have it. Okay. 

THE WITNESS: The changes from the or ig ina l  rebut ta l  

testimony tha t  I f i l e d  versus the revised testimony, on 

Page 10, Line 5, due t o  some changes tha t  Ms. Brown made i n  her 

calculat ion, I removed the numbers t h a t  referred back t o  her 

now or ig ina l  analysis. 

And on Page 21, s ta r t i ng  a t  Line 8, continuing 

through t o  Page 21, ending on Line 23, I responded t o  
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addit ional information Ms. Brown provided i n  her f i l i n g  on 

November the 5th. 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Okay. Q I f  I were t o  ask you the questions contained 

i n  your revised rebut ta l  testimony, would your answers be the 

same? 

A Yes 

MR. BEASLEY: Madam Chairman, I ' d  ask tha t  

Ms. Jordan's revised rebut ta l  testimony f i  1 ed November 7th be 

inserted i n t o  the record as though read. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: The revised testimony o f  3. Denise 

Jordan f i l e d  November 7 th  shal l  be inserted i n t o  the record as 

though read. 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Ms. Jordan, d id  tha t  November 7 th  revised rebuttal  

testimony also include a revised Exhib i t  JDJ-4? 
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A That i s  correct. 

Q And what were the nature 

exh ib i t  from the one previously f i  

A There was no change. 

o f  the revisions i n  tha t  

ed? 

MR. BEASLEY: 1 ' d  ask that  Ms. Jordan's revised 

exh ib i t  be marked for i denti f i c a t i  on. 
CHAIRMAN JABER: Give me the exh ib i t  number one more 

time, Mr. Beasley. 

MR. BEASLEY: I t ' s  JDJ-4 and i t ' s  the version tha t  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION I1 
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1045 

was f i l e d  w i t h  the November 7th revised rebuttal  testimony. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And was tha t  exh ib i t  revised a t  a l l ?  

MR. BEASLEY: I don'-t th ink  so. I th ink  i t  was j u s t  

included i n  order t o  have a f u l l  .package f o r  you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. J D J - 4  w i l l  be i d e n t i f i e d  as 

Exhib i t  40. 

(Exhibi t  40 marked f o r  i den t i  f i ca t i on .  ) 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q 4  

A, 

Q. 

a. 

Q. 

A. 

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

FILED: 10/16/03 
REVISED: 11/07/03 

DOCKET NO. 030001-E1 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

PREPARED REBUTTAL TESTIMONY 

OF 

J. -DENISE JORDAN 

Please s t a t e  your name, address, occupation and employer. 

My name is J. Denise Jordan. My business address is 702 

N o r t h  Franklin Street, Tampa,  Florida 3 3 6 0 2 .  I am 

employed by Tampa E l e c t r i c  Company (’’Tampa E l e c t r i c ”  or 

“company”) as Director,  Rates and Planning in t h e  

Regulatory Affairs Department. 

A r e  you the same Denise Jordan who submitted Prepared 

Direct Testimony in this proceeding? 

Yes, I am. 

What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony? 

The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to address 

certain inaccuracies and deficiencies in t h e  assertions 

and conclusions of the  testimonies of Ms.  Sheree L. 

Brown, testifying on behal€ of t he  Florida Industrial 

Power U s e r s  Group (“FIPUG”) and the Flo r ida  Retail 
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Federation ("FRF" ) , and Mr . 
testifying on behalf of the 

("OPC") . 

Q. Have you prepared any exhibits 

Michael J. Majoros, Jr. 

office a€ Public Counsel 

to support your testimony? 

My Exhibit No. (JDJ-4), consists of three 

documents. Document No. 1 is the company's notification 

to t h e  Commission regarding the Hardee Power  Partners,  

Ltd. ('HPP") transfer of ownership and Document No. 2 is 

furnished to correct Ms. Brown's math errors and address 

the inappropriate assumptions Ms. Brown used to calculate 

Gannon replacement fuel costs  f o r  2 0 0 3  and 2 0 0 4  based on 

2 0 0 2  generation. 

- A. Yes. 

Testimony of Ms. Sheree I;. Brown 

Q. A r e  there  references made in Ms. Brown's testimony that 

you will not address? I f  so, why not? 

A. Yes, there are. I will not address Ms. Brown's 

statements concerning Tampa Electric's cancellation of 

rights to four combustion turbines (Pages 11 and 12), the  

acceleration of depreciation and dismantlement charges on 

Gannon Station (Pages 22 through 2 4 ) '  and t h e  treatment 

of dismantlement costs on Gannon Station (Pages 2 4  and 

2 
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Q. 

Am 

2 5 )  because they are neither germane to nor appropriate 

f o r  inclusion in the fuel and purchased power docket. 

. -  

Additionally, it is my understanding t h a k -  the 

cancellation of rights to the four combustion t u rb ines  

was included in the company’s monthly surveillance 

reporting as a below-the-line write-off, r e s u l t i n g  in no 

impact to ratepayers. It is a l so  my understanding t h a t  

t h e  proposed depreciation ra tes  and dismantlement 

accruals associated with Gannon Station are being 

addressed in Docket No. 030409-E1, f u r t h e r  supporting my 

conclusion t h a t  those references by Ms. B r o w n  should not 

be included in this proceeding. 

Please address your overall assessment of Ms. Brown’s 

testimony. 

While Ms. Brown expresses concern over what she 

characterizes as feared subsidies of Tampa Electric’s 

affiliates by Tampa Electric‘s ratepayers, she has not  

provided any concrete examples of such subsidies. She 

simply describes her  version of how any utility might 

take steps t o  game base r a t e  type expenses and those 

expenses collected through cost recovery clauses. Then, 

she merely assumes bad faith on the  p a r t  of Tampa 

E l e c t r i c  and concludes t h a t  some type of subsidy may have 
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occurred. Her assumed subsidies appear to reflect Ms. 

Brown‘s lack of familiarity w i t h  t h e  f a c t s ,  and they 

cer ta in ly  don’t serve as a basis f o r  t h e  erroneous and 

unwarranted adjustment she recommends. 

In addition, her claims of subsidies and the need for 

” f u r t h e r  study” of utility and affiliate transactions are 

a recurrent  theme of FIPUG. This was the approach taken 

by FIPUG two years ago i n  the f u e l  and purchased power 

docket in which FIPUG also challenged Tampa Electric’s 

wholesale transactions with HPP. T h a t  case was a l s o  

built on assumptions, presumed bad faith and an apparent 

lack of familiarity with the facts by FIPUG witnesses. 

A f t e r  c a re fu l  consideration, t h e  Commission soundly 

rejected FIPUG’s arguments as did the Flor ida  Supreme 

Court in affirming the Commission‘s decision. FIPUG has 

made the  same erroneous arguments on a number of 

occasions. These arguments have been rejected by t h i s  

Commission and should be rejected again in this docket. 

On pages 3 through 8 of her testimony, Ms. Brown suggests 

t h a t  the financial needs of Tampa Electric‘s parent  could 

have affected Tampa Electric’s ratepayers. How do you 

respond? 
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A .  

Q. 

A. 

Ms. Brown's assumptions in this regard do no t  have any 

basis in f a c t .  If anything, Tampa Electric's paren t ,  

TECO Energy, I n c . ,  has repeatedly emphasized its- focus  

and efforts on strengthening, not weakening, i t s  core 

business of providing regulated public u t i l i t y  services. 

Ms. Brown only h i n t s  that actions "could" have been taken 

for ulterior purposes without any demonstration that that 

has happened 

On pages 8 through 9 of her testimony, Ms. B r o w n  

addresses Tampa Electric's contractual relationship with 

its affiliates, particularly with respect to coal 

purchases and waterborne coal transportation services, 

and suggests t h a t  Tampa Elec t r ic  might p u r s u e  "above 

market costs" to subsidize the affiliate at the expense 

of Tampa Electric's retail utility customers. How do you 

respond? 

Once again, Ms. Brown must rely on unsupported 

assumptions about what a utility "might do. I' She 

apparently is unaware t h a t  Tampa Elec t r ic  does not have a 

contract with an affiliate to purchase coal .  The  

company's l a s t  long-term coal contract with an affiliate 

ended in 1 9 9 9 .  In addition, she seems to be unaware of 

the  hundreds of millions of dollars of coal 
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Q- 

A.  

transportation cos t  savings Tampa Electric's coal 

transportation affiliate has brought t o  Tampa Electric's 

r e t a i l  customers over many years as previously discussed 

in the direct testimony of Tampa E l e c t r i c  witness J. T .  

Wehle. She a l so  completely overlooks the careful 

scrutiny this Commission has always given to affiliate 

transactions to ensure tha t  utility customers are not 

harmed by those relationships. I t  is  noteworthy t ha t  Ms. 

B r o w n  does not testify t ha t  Tampa Electric's arrangement 

w i t h  i t s  affiliate has exceeded market-based costs .  She 

j u s t  says "to t h e  extent t ha t "  it is above market costs 

TECO Energy benefits while higher cos ts  are passed on to 

Tampa E lec t r ic  ratepayers (Page 9 ,  lines 6 - 8 ) .  In fact, 

as required by Commission Order No. 20298, Tampa Elec t r i c  

has consistently demonstrated t h a t  i t s  affiliated coal 

transportation prices are at or below t h e  transportation 

benchmark which the  Commission established as 'a 

reasonable market price indication," a fact Ms, Brown may 

not be aware of or chooses to ignore. 

How do you respond to Ms. Brown's suggestion, a t  page 9 ,  

that  r e t a i l  customers are impacted by TECO Power 

Services' ("TPS") sale of the Hardee Power S t a t i o n ?  

Ms. B r o w n  s ta tes  that if the  facility had been owned by 
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Tampa Elec t r i c  any gain . may have been shared with 

ratepayers. Ms. Brown simply assumes away any 

distinction between regulated public utility property and 

property that is dwned by an unregulated affiliate. 

Moreover, her suggestion that Tampa Electric's purchase 

agreement supported the sale  ignores the fact that the  

power purchase agreements between and among Tampa 

Electric, Seminole Elec t r i c  Cooperative, Inc. ('"SEC") and 

HPP provided t h e  basis for t h e  Commission's determination 

of need for the Hardee Power Station initially. That 

determination was based on t h e  Commission's finding t h a t  

t h e  contracts in question would save ratepayers millions 

of dollars over t h e  life of the Hardee P o w e r  Station 

projec t  . 

In approving the  determination of need, t h e  Commission 

found that t h e  TPS proposal was the most cost effective 

alternative available. In its order the Commission 

stated:  

We base this finding on t h e  economics inherent 

in the three wholesale contracts and the ground 

lease introduced as evidence in this 

proceeding: t he  ground lease between Acuesa 

Corporation (a subsidiary of SEC) and TPS; the 

agreement for sale and purchase of capacity and 
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energy from Big Bend -Unit No. 4 between TECO 

and TPS; the agreement f o r  sale and purchase of 

capacity and energy f rom Big Bend Unit No. - -4  

between TECO arid TPS; the agreement f o r  sale 

and purchase of capacity and energy between TPS 

and SEC; and the agreement f o r  s a l e  and 

purchase of capacity and energy from t h e  Hardee 

Power Station between TPS and TECO, a l l  dated 

July 27, 1989. As these contracts are written, 

Phases I and I1 of the TPS proposal will result 

in projected present worth of revenue 

requirements (PWRR) savings to SEC of 

approximately $ 5 7  million (1987 $) compared to 

SEC's proposed construction and projected PWRR 

savings of $90 million (1989 $ 1  to TECO, most 

of which is associated with the payments €or 

145 MW of Big Bend 4 capacity dur ing  phase I 

(1993-2003) . ( O r d e r  No. 2 2 3 3 5 ,  issued in 

Docket No. 880309-EC on December 22, 1989. 

(emphasis supplied) 

How do you respond to Ms. Brown's statement t h a t  Tampa 

E l e c t r i c '  s power purchase agreement with HPP supported 

t h e  sale? 
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A. 

Q* 

A. 

As I previously stated, t h e  power purchase agreements 

that supported the  determination of need did so because 

they supported the economics f o r  retail ratepayers %f SEC 

and Tampa E lec t r i c .  At the top  of page 10, Ms. B r o w n  

erroneously s ta tes  that t he  power purchase agreement 

between Tampa E l e c t r i c  and HPP is being assigned to the 

new owner of the  facility. In fac t ,  no power purchase 

agreements are being assigned. Instead, i t  is the 

ownership of HPP t h a t  is being assigned. As previously 

s ta ted  in t h e  direct testimony of Tampa Electric witness 

B .  F. Smith and as indicated in Exhibit No. 

Document No. 1, Tampa Electric's notification to the 

Commission regarding the HPP transfer of ownership, the 

power purchase agreements will go forward as they have in 

the  pas t ,  completely unchanged. 

(JDJ-4), - 

Has witness B r o w n  s t a t ed  any bas is  f o r  further 

examination of the HPP power purchase agreement? 

No, she has not. She has failed to present any new 

material fact to justify revisiting the recent 

determinations by the Commission and t h e  F lor ida  Supreme 

Court ;  therefore, FIPUG and FRF's e f f o r t s  in t h i s  regard 

should be rejected.  
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Q. 

A. 

Beginning on page 12 and continuing through page 22,'line 

6, Ms. Brown describes her  evaluation of-the scheduled 

shutdown of Gannon Units 1 through 4, culminating i n  a 

recommendation that Tampa E lec t r ic  be required to of f se t  

replacement power costs by O&M savings. How do you 

respond? 

Ms. Brown's recommended adjustment has no bas i s  in fact 

and ignores Tampa Electric's consideration of a myriad of 

f ac to r s  including safety, r e l i a b i l i t y ,  the age of the 

units, risks inherent in attempting to keep the 'units 

running, the  need to re t ra in  and redeploy Gannon Station 

employees and numerous other factors. In addition, there 

are mathematical errors and several inappropriate 

assumptions in her analysis, Even if you accept her view 

t h a t  an adjustment is in order, which 7: clearly do not, 

upon review of Ms. Brown's calculation of t he  adjustment ,  

I note the following regarding Ms. Brown's analysis and 

(JDJ-4)' Document No. 2 which provide Exhibit No. 

corrects Ms. Brown's math error and incorrect 

assumptions: 

- 

F i r s t ,  the t o t a l  net generation f o r  Gannon Unit 5 of 

836,201 MWH used by Ms. Brown is incorrect .  The correct 

t o t a l  is 801,713 MWH. In addition, Ms. Brown erroneously 
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includes the impact of Gannon Unit 5 in her calculation, 

while acknowledging on page 20, lines 19 through 21, that 

t h e  calculation is  associated with Gannon Units 1 through 

4 and 6 only.  

Second, Gannon Unit 6 is being repowered to Bayside Unit 

2 and the transmission facilities of Gannon Unit 4 will 

be utilized by Bayside Unit 2; consequently, it is not 

appropriate to include either unit in the calculation. 

Therefore, Ms. Brown has overstated the MWH of l o s t  

generation by 1,068,669 MWH. 

Third, t h e  Bayside cos t  used by Ms. Brown is a cos t  

estimate t h a t  includes the na tura l  gas pipeline 

transportation costs. These costs will n o t  change 

regardless of Bayside or Gannon generation. Therefore, 

Ms. Brown should have used the 2002  cost of $ 0 . 0 3 2 8  per 

kwh . 

Fourth,  the Gannon cos t  used by Ms. Brown incorrectly 

includes generation from Gannon Units 4, 5 and 6. After 

appropriately adjusting t h e  cost to include only  Gannon 

Units 1 through 3, the resulting cost is $0.0233 per kWh. 

Fifth, as previously s t a t e d  in the di rec t  testimony of 
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Q *  

Tampa Elec t r i c  witness Wehle, the company currently 

expects the impact of coal contract .penalties to 

ratepayers t o  be neut ra l  at worst, and there remains the  

potential for ratepayers to experience net gains. In 

addition, during negotiations with TECO Transport  for t h e  

new coal waterborne transportation contract effective 

January 1, 2004 ,  the company successfully negotiated the  

elimination of any dead freight expenses under t h e  

existing contract. Therefore, Ms. Brown‘s assumed dead 

freight and coal contract  penalties of $6.555 million and 

$7.67 million respectively are not valid and should be 

excluded in the calculation. 

Given t h e  aforementioned corrections and using t h e  same 

methodology as Ms. Brown, t he  resulting analysis y ie lds  

an impact of $8.2 million as compared to Ms. Brown‘s 

original result of $61.6 million, an overstatement of 

$53.5 million. By any standard, Ms. Brown’s calculation 

is grossly incor rec t .  I n  any event, the calculation 

i tsel f  is based on faulty logic and must be entirely 

rejected. 

At the bottom of page 21 through the top o€ page 22, Ms. 

Brown s ta tes  five factors she believes would make her 

adjustment fair and equitable. Assuming her  calculations 
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w e r e  correct, how do you respond to her five p o i n t s ?  

A. Her first point is that t he  decision regarding when to 

shut down Gannon -Units 1 through 4 "was a voluntary 

decision by the  company within its control." As should 

any business, Tampa Elec t r ic  makes "voluntary" company 

decisions after careful and complete analysis, as was the 

scheduling decision f o r  shutting down Gannon Units 1 

through 4 .  Tha t  is no reason to mix or o f f s e t  base rate 

revenue or expenses with fuel adjustment revenue or 

expenses. 

Her second basis that t he  requirement t o  s h u t  down the 

units by t h e  end of 2004  was a d i rec t  result of claimed 

violations by the U. S .  Environmental P r o t e c t i o n  Agency 

("EPA") is patently wrong. Tampa E l e c t r i c  did not admit 

violations nor d id  it bring a lawsuit against  i t s e l f ,  

The company settled litigation i n i t i a t e d  by the EPA and 

DEP because settlement appeared to be the most prudent 

litigation and cost-effective alternative in light of the 

and t h e  risks inherent in such litigation. 

Ms. Brown's third point, t ha t  ratepayers w;ll suffer 

"continued harm through additional replacement power 

costs from 2 0 0 5  through 2007"  is, likewise, ridiculous 
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because any such additional costs stem d i r e c t l y  from the 

fac t  that the coal units at Gannon Station a re  required 

to cease operation a f t e r  December 31, 2 0 0 4 .  In essence, 

Ms. Brown's third poin t  is linked to her second alleged 

basis f o r  penalizing Tampa Electric and must be re jected 

out of hand. 

Ms. Brown's fourth point that the ratepayers have paid 

Tampa Electric f o r  the environmental modifications t h a t  

were challenged by the EPA is, likewise, cumulative and 

ignores the  fact that those modifications were in the 

economic i n t e re s t  of Tampa Electric's customers. Again, 

Tampa Electric did not concede the validity of the EPA's 

challenge either in the litigation or in the  Consent: 

Decree. In essence, Ms. Brown advocates punishing Tampa 

E l e c t r i c  f o r  attempting to pursue the most economic 

alternatives f o r  its customers. 

Ms. Brown's f i f t h  and final poin t  alleges t h a t  Tampa 

E l e c t r i c  has benefited from contractual relationships 

with its subsidiaries. This point is more of an excuse 

than a reason f o r  any adjustment, particularly when one 

considers the benefits that Tampa Electric's customers 

have derived from the creation and operation of the 

integrated waterborne transportation services provided by 

14 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

IO 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q .  

A. 

Tampa Electric’s affiliate, TECO Transport .  

At page 2 2  Ms. Brown points t o  ce r t a in  costs allowed for 

recovery through the cost recovery clauses  that she 

claims would normally be authorized through base rates. 

How do you respond? 

Ms. B r o w n  is correct that on a case-by-case basis the 

Commission has allowed recovery of cer tain expenses 

through the fuel and purchased power clause that would 

traditionally be recovered through base rates. In those 

specific instances, the  expenses were fuel-related and 

recovery through the fuel and purchased clause was 

allowed because 1) t h e  expense resulted in net fuel. 

savings to ratepayers, 2) assisted w i t h  mitigating fuel 

price volatility or 3 )  helped to i n su la t e  ratepayers from 

additional fuel and purchased power expenses by 

protecting generating facilities to ensure their 

continued operation. T h e  items Ms. B r o w n  references fo r  

adjustment through the  clause are in no way fuel-related 

and are selectively chosen and improperly viewed in 

isolation without any consideration of other Tampa 

E l e c t r i c  ra te  base adjustments, For example, Ms. B r o w n  

ignores the fact that Tampa E l e c t r i c  has absorbed the 

addition of Polk Units 1 through 3 and Baysi.de Units 1 
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and 2 without requesting additional base ra tes .  

Q. On page 26, Ms. Brown states the belief t ha t  her  concerns 

support additional Commission investigation o f  various 

items. How do you respond? 

A. Again, FIPUG‘s traditional goal is to “ f u r t h e r  

investigate”. Tampa Electric’s purchased power agreement 

with HPP has been reviewed time and again by this 

Commission and as I s t a t e d  ea r l i e r ,  both the Commission 

and the F l o r i d a  Supreme Court  have recently rejected 

FIPUG’s arguments in t h i s  regard, Also, t h e  existence of 

a gain on t h e  sale of HPP does not mean t h a t  t h e  power 

purchase agreement was not c o s t  based; it simply ref lects  

increased value of the  asset. I n  addition, the HPP 

agreement does not need to be addressed because t h e  terms 

and conditions of t he  power purchase agreement w i l l  

continue completely unchanged from the manner in which 

they existed prior to the transfer of ownership. 

Testimony of Mr. Michael J .  Majoros, Jr. 

Q. Mx. Majoros’s d i rec t  testimony s ta tes  that  Tampa 

Electric’s fuel clause should be credited w i t h  an amount 

of O&M savings he has calculated. How do you respond? 
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A. Similar t o  Ms, Brawn, M r .  Majoros has taken bits and 

pieces from discovery testimony submitted by Tampa 

Elec t r i c  completely out of context and reached erroneous 

conclusions. There are several problems with Mr. 

Majoros's calculations. First , the fundamental basis of 

h i s  analysis of the impact to fuel and purchased power 

costs, which is  the  supposed reason for his claim that 

t h e  increase in fuel cos ts  should be o f f s e t  by O&M 

amounts, is flawed [Exhibit MJM-71. He incorrectly 

attributes t h e  entire difference between two separate 

analyses and fuel cost projections submitted by Tampa 

E lec t r ic  to the  revised Gannon units' shutdown schedule. 

Many different fac tors  changed and assumptions were 

revised between the t i m e  that the first and second 

studies referenced by Mr. Majoros were prepared. Y e t  Mr. 

Majoros ignores this fac t .  Furthermore, Mr. Majoros ties 

t h e  calculation of his $116 million estimated impact on 

fuel and purchased power costs due to the Gannon shutdown 

schedule to Tampa Electric's August 12, 2003 

actual/estimated f i l i n g ,  rather than  to t he  February 24, 

2 0 0 3  filing in which the revised shutdown scheduled was 

first modeled and included. This is yet another example 

of how Mr. Majoros takes isolated bits of information 

from discovery and testimony and uses them out of context 

to string together his argument. 
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In addition, to simply assume t h a t  the  entire difference 

between any two filings is related t o  t h e  revision of the  

expected Gannon units' shutdown dates is incorrect. As 

Tampa Electric s t a t e d  in i ts  response to Interrogatory 

No. 46 of OPC's Third Set, the interrogatory request was 

written such that it assumed t he  hypothetical t ha t  t he  

units would be dispatchable. Tampa Electr ic  stated the 

accuracy of such an assumption is highly doubtful. Other 

factors of safety, reliability, employee utilization, and 

the  time required to make repairs are all significant in 

determining t h e  validity of this assumption. Thus, the 

company appropriately included them i n  its decision- 

making process. To simply ignore these operational 

constraints and to u t i l i z e  a hypothetical value that is 

based on assumed dispatchability that no longer reflects 

cur ren t  conditions or appropriate assumptions, as Mr. 

Majoros has done, is c lea r ly  erroneous. 

At page 10 of his testimony, Mr. Majoros states that O&M 

amounts not spent at Gannon Station represent a savings 

for Tampa E l e c t r i c .  He then implies t h a t  t h e  savings will 

result in increased earnings to benefit shareholders. 

Finally, he proposes an offset  of t h e  alleged O&M savings 

to costs recovered through the  fuel clause. A r e  his 

allegations grounded in fact? 
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Q. 

No. First, as stated in t h e  rebuttal testimony of Tampa 

Electric witness W. T. Whale, Tampa Electric did not 

simply cut  0 & M  spending a t  Gannon Station. The c-ompany 

focused i ts  investment strategies t o  obtain a b e t t e r  value 

f r o m  its 0 & M  expenditures. Second, Mr. Majoros does not 

provide support, presumably because he does not have any, 

for his allegation t h a t  the company’s O&M spending 

decisions resulted in savings fo r  shareholders. He simply 

makes the  statement on page 10, line 15 t h a t  “as a general 

proposition increased earnings benefit shareholders.” Mr. 

Majoros also ignores the structure of cos t  -based 

ratemaking i n  F lor ida .  Investor-owned utilities collect 

base ra tes  and operate within an allowable earnings range. 

Tampa E l e c t r i c  is currently striving to add over $700 

million in the form of the repowered Bayside Station to 

i ts  rate base, without requesting additional base rates to 

do so. To insinuate t h a t  shareholders might b e n e f i t  from 

increased earnings I without even showing evidence of such 

earnings, is simply not a sufficient reason to assign a 

penalty to T a m p a  Electr ic  as Mr. Majoros proposes, 

What do the  O&M savings amounts t h a t  Mr. Majoros lists 

represent and i s  h i s  proposed adjustment to fuel clause 

cost recovery to re f lec t  his calculated O&M savings, 

appropriate ? 
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Again, Mr. Majoros’s O&M savings represent an estimate of 

the additional dollars t h e  company did not invest in the 

Gannon u n i t s  due to the age of the units and near-term 

shutdown requirements. While Mr. Majoros continues to 

present 0 & M  amounts not spent at Gannon Station as savings 

for Tampa E l e c t r i c  and its shareholders, he completely 

disregards Tampa Electric’s witness testimony t h a t  the 

company used prudent decision making and chose to focus 

i ts  spending on other  generating units given the shutdown 

commitment f o r  the Gannon units. Furthermore, Mr. 

Majoros’s flawed analyses are no reason to mix or of f se t  

base r a t e  revenues and cos ts  with fuel clause revenues and 

costs, as he proposes to do with his adjustment. 

How would you characterize Mr. Majoros’s testimony on an 

overall basis? 

As 1 previously s ta ted ,  Mr. Maj o m s  inappropriately 

strings bits and pieces of testimony and deposition 

transcripts together to reach an erroneous result. Mr. 

Majoros has presented no independent evaluation of 

important issues concerning safety,  reliability, 

operational considerations and the economics of the 

appropriate shutdown schedule f o r  Gannan Units 3 through 

4 .  As a matter of fact, at page 12 of his testimony, he 

20 
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s t a t e s  that the company‘s . cu r r en t  schedule for shutting 

down Gannon Units 1 through 4 in and of i t s e l f  does not 

harm ratepa) z r s .  Mr. Majoros’s analysis that detkrmined 

h i s  proposed penalty; or cost recovery o f f s e t ,  is flawed, 

and his proposed offset of fuel cost recovery dollars 

with O&M amounts is inappropriate. 

Testimony of Ms. Sheree I;. Brown 

Q .  On November 5,  2003, Ms. Brown filed revised testimony 

that included among other items, modifications to her  

calculation of the O&M savings due to t he  shutdown of the 

Gannon units. How do you respond? 

A. It should be noted t h a t  this is Ms. Brown’s t h i r d  attempt 

to make such a calculation and, much like t h e  calculation 

Ms. Brown provided for the  fuel replacement costs,  her 

O&M savings evaluation is flawed with inappropriate 

assumptions. This calculation is substantially different 

than the ones provided in her  original d i r e c t  testimony 

and her deposition on October 30, 2003. Not withstanding 

my disagreement with Ms. Brown’s recommendation of 

offsetting fuel replacement cos ts  with O&M savings and 

her methodology, I observe t h e  following regarding her  

calculation: 
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F i r s t ,  in Ms. Brown’s original testimony and her  

deposition, she incorrectly applies $57.4 m i l l i o n . a s  an 

incremental avoided O&M savings fo r  2 0 0 3 .  As stated by 

witness Whale, t h e  $57.4 million was never included in 

the budget or business plan given t h e  near-term required 

shut down of Gannon Units 1 through 4. It w a s  simply an 

assessment t h a t  confirmed the significant capital 

requirements needed f o r  the continued operat ion of the  

units f o r  2003 and 2 0 0 4 .  

Second, Ms. Brown assumes a full year of avoided 0 & M  

savings in 2003 for Gannon U n i t  6 even though the company 

d id  incur O&M expenses f o r  most of t h e  year. The unit 

w a s  not shut down until September 3 0 ,  2003. 

Third, as I s t a t e d  earlier, Bayside Unit 2 m u s t  utilize 

t h e  transmission facilities for Gannon Unit 4; 

consequently, it is not appropriate to attribute any 

avoided O&M savings f o r  t h a t  unit in the calculation. 

Finally, Ms. B r o w n  never accounts for the company‘s 

ac tua l  2003 0 & M  expenses incurred f o r  t he  Gannon units, 

but does attribute company expenses in 2004. 

Does t h i s  conclude your rebuttal testimony? 
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A. Y e s  it does. 
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test i mony . 
A My rebuttal testimony addresses the significant 

deficiencies and inaccuracies i n  the testimonies .o f  Ms. Brown 

testifying on behalf of FIPUG and the Florida Retail Federation 
and Mr. Ma j o ros  testi fying on behal f of OPC. 

Ms. Brown's testimony includes her estimates of fuel 
and purchased power cost impact and O&M expense savings due t o  
the shutdown of the Gannon units. She proposes offsetting 
Tampa Electric's fuels costs by her estimated O&M savings. 

Fi rst  , Ms. Brown's proposed adjustment i s 
inappropriate because i t  mixes base rate and fuel cost - -  fuel 
clause recovery. T h i s  Commission has i n  the past  authorized 
recovery of certain speciflc costs through the fuel clause t h a t  
would t r ad i t i ona l ly  be recovered through base rates i n  cases 
where those expenses were fuel related and resulted i n  net fuel 
savings t o  ratepayers . However, the adjustments t h a t  Ms. Brown 
proposes is  not fuel related, and she has selectively chosen 
one item for adjustment w i t h o u t  considering other significant 
items t h a t  would have been taken i n t o  account i n  the context o f  

a base rate proceeding. 
Even i f  such an adjustment were warranted, which i t  

i s  not ,  Ms. Brown's calculations are incorrect. There are a 
number o f  inaccuracies i n  Ms. Brown's calculations, and her 

1069 

3Y MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Ms. Jordan, would you please summarize your rebuttal 
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nethodology i s  inappropriate. Ms. Brown's u t i l i z a t i o n  o f  the 

657.4 m i l l i o n  value i n  her calculat ion o f  O&M savings i s  

inappropriate because i t  i s  not a savings t o  Tampa E lec t r i c .  

The company never budgeted nor planned t o  spent 57.4 m i  11 ion  

3ecause i t  would not have been prudent t o  do so. . 

Ms. Brown also recommends a review o f  Tampa 

E l e c t r i c ' s  purchased power agreement with Hardee Power Partners 

i n  l i g h t  o f  the s ta t ion  sale, but she provides no new evidence 

o r  support f o r  t h i s  act ion. These e f f o r t s  have been heard 

before by t h i s  Commission and the Flor ida Supreme Court, and 

FIPUG's arguments have been rejected. There i s  no need t o  

invest igate because the sale o f  the s ta t i on  has no impact on 

Tampa E l e c t r i c ' s  purchased power agreement. 

S i m i l a r  t o  Ms. Brown, M r .  Majoros takes b i t s  and 

pieces o f  information from discovery and testimony submitted by 

Tampa E l e c t r i c  completely out o f  context. And as a resu l t ,  he 

has reached erroneous conclusions. The reasons he gives for 
h i s  proposed O&M savings o f f se t  t o  fuel cost recovery i s  h i s  

ca lcu lat ion of an increase i n  fuel and purchased power costs. 

tie a t t r i bu tes  the e n t i r e  dif ference between two project ions t o  

the Gannon - - excuse me. He a t t r ibu tes  the e n t i r e  dif ference 

between two project ions t o  the Gannon shutdown without regard 

f o r  the fac t  t ha t  many assumptions were updated and many 

conditions have changed i n  the in te rva l  between preparing the 

two estimates. Even i f  I agreed tha t  h i s  reason was 
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appropriate f o r  one - -  f o r  adjusting fuel  cost recovery, which 

I def-initely do not, h i s  calculat ion i s  flawed. 

Mr. Majoros's proposed O&M savings amount i s  

inaccurate and he uses outdated estimates. In any event, h i s  

o f f s e t t i n g  methodology i s  inappropriate because M r  Ma joros 

l i k e  Ms. Brown se lec t ive ly  mixes two d i f f e r e n t  types o f  cost 

recovery t o  s u i t  h i s  purpose. He recommends o f f s e t t i n g  a base 

ra te  item w i t h  fuel  cost recovery. As I ' v e  previously stated, 

such mixing o f  base ra te  and fuel cost recovery i s  

inappropriate. The erroneous statements and conclusions o f  

both o f  these witnesses should be rejected, and no 

consideration should be given t o  t h e i r  proposed adjustments t o  

the fuel clause due t o  supposed O&M savings. That concludes my 

summary. 

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. We tender Ms. Jordan f o r  

questions 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. Mr . McWhi r t e r  

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q Ms. Brown (s i c ) ,  1 have about two and a h a l f  hours o f  

cross-examination f o r  you, but I'm going t o  l i m i t  i t  j u s t  t o  

the things you ta lked about i n  your summary. And as I 

understand it, the f i r s t  th ing  you talked about was - -  

CHAIRMAN JABER: What does tha t  mean exactly, 

Mr. McWhirter, t h a t  we s t i l l  have two and a h a l f  hours o f  
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cross, o r  you've l i m i t e d  i t  t o  j u s t  a few minutes? 

THE WITNESS: We1 1, maybe i f  we s t a r t  w i th  - - 

does i t  mean? I don' t  know MR. McWHIRTER: What 

exactly what I mean, Ms. Jaber 

THE WITNESS: - -  the 

CHAIRMAN JABER: We1 

Mr . McWhi r t e r  . 
BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

fac t  tha t  I ' m  Ms. .Jordan. 

, there you go. Go ahead; 

Q What Ms. Brown suggests i s  tha t  customers are being 

charged an addit ional $180 m i l l i o n  or so i n  2003 and 2004 for 
the dif ference between natural gas and coal pr ice.  And she 

suggests a sharing o f  the benef i ts,  as others have done, by 

set t ing i t  o f f  against O&M costs tha t  the u t i l i t y  has saved a t  

the Gannon plant.  

42, according t o  M r .  Whale. And your argument against tha t  i s  

p r i nc ipa l l y  tha t  you can ' t  mix up base rates and fuel  cost 

recovery, i t ' s  inappropriate t o  do it, and the Commission 

wouldn't do it. 

For instance, you reduced 176 employees t o  

A Is tha t  your question? 

Q Yes or no? 

A To an extent, yes. F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  I ' d  l i k e  t o  say 

tha t  I ' m  not i n  agreement w i t h  her ca lcu lat ion o f  the 

$180 m i l l i o n  - -  

Q I understand that.  

A - -  so w e ' l l  move past that .  I'm not c lear on the 
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others tha t  you're re fe r r i ng  t o  t ha t  have shared as you so 

stated e a r l i e r .  With regards t o  the mixing, the concern i s  

that  i t  i s  inappropriate t o  take something and t o  s t r i c t l y  

i so la te  i t  without looking a t  the e n t i r e t y  o f  the s i tuat ion.  

It is  not as i f  Gannon i s  going o f f - l i n e  and nothing i s -  

replacing it. There i s  the fac t  tha t  the Bayside un i ts  are 

coming on- l ine;  then t o  couple tha t  w i th  the fac t  t ha t  there 

are other aspects t o  the company. So t o  look a t  i t  on t o t a l i t y  

i s  more appropriate than t o  look a t  i t  i n  i so la t ion .  

Q From the information avai lable t o  you, d i d  you 

conclude tha t  the O&M costs f o r  Bayside are the same or  greater 

than the O&M costs f o r  Gannon? 

A I d id  not conclude that .  I d i d n ' t  conclude anything 

about the O&M. 
Q So you don ' t  know whether the Bayside costs are less 

or more; r i g h t ?  

A And tha t  was par t  o f  the reason for saying tha t  i t ' s  

not appropriate t o  look a t  j u s t  the - -  

Q Because you don ' t  know? 

A No, no. I t ' s  not because I don' t  know. I t ' s  because 

I don' t  th ink  i t ' s  appropriate t o  look a t  one piece o f  the 

puzzle without looking a t  a l l  the res t .  

Q A l l  r i g h t .  Were you involved a t  a l l  i n  the 

discussions concerning e a r l y  on co l lec t ing  the f u l l  cost o f  the 

Bayside p lant  through the fuel clause? 
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A Excuse me? 

Q Are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  the discussions your company 

had about co l lec t ing  the en t i re  costs o f  the Bayside plant 

through the fuel clause as opposed t o  base rates? 

A I ' m  not aware tha t  the company had discussions on 
pu t t i ng  a power p lant  through the fuel clause. 

Q Okay. You're not aware o f  that .  Is the t o t a l  cost 

o f  Bayside divided between new generation and environmental 

cost? Is any port ion o f  i t  coming through the environmental 

c l  ause? 

A The consumables are coming through. I th ink tha t ' s  

about $250,000 

Q And no capi ta l  costs are going - - you're not going t o  

ask t o  co l l ec t  any capi ta l  costs through the environmental 

c l  ause? 

A I can never say never, but a t  t h i s  point ,  we have not 

requested anything t o  go through the clause. 

Q Now, I ' m  going t o  go t o  Hardee Power Partners 

contract, and you say we keep r e v i s i t i n g  that .  And the l a s t  

time we v i s i t e d  it, do you reca l l  tha t  the problem we t a l  ked 

about was tha t  you were s e l l i n g  power t o  Hardee f o r  $26 a 

megawatt hour and a t  the same time buying power back from 

Hardee a t  $26 a megawatt hour - -  

A That was my understanding - - 

megawatt hour? Q - -  I mean, $52 a 
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A That was my understanding o f  your al legat ion,  but 

that  was not ever substanti ated. 

Q And you argued then-and you argue now tha t  the 

projected present worth revenue cequi rement savings tha t  the 

Commission found back i n  1988 (s ic )  was $90 m i l l i o n .  This i s  

on your testimony a t  Page 6, beginning a t  around Line 13: 

A 

Q Well, I may be looking a t  the prepared rebuttal .  Let 

Page 8 o f  my testimony, Line 15? 

me show you the page j u s t  t o  save time. 

A I th ink what I f i l e d ,  i t ' s  on Bates stamp Page 8 o f  

my testimony. You've got a d i f f e ren t  p r in tou t .  

Q On Line 16 on my page it says, most o f  those savings 

i s  associated w i th  the payments f o r  145 megawatts o f  Big Bend, 

and tha t  contract expired on December 31st of 2002; i s  tha t  

correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Now, what are the other savings, according t o  your 

analysis, tha t  customers are get t ing from the Hardee continued 

contract? 

A 

Q 

I have not updated t h i s  analysis since t h i s  was done. 

So you've done no t e s t  t o  see t h a t  customers are 

s t i l l  benef i t ing under the new contract? 

A You asked me spec i f i ca l l y  w i th  regards t o  the other 

associated items. 

a t  whether or not the purchase towards - -  compared t o  the 

I f  you're asking w i th  regards t o  do we look  
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forward market i s  s t i l l  cost -ef fect ive,  t h a t  has been, I th ink,  

t e s t i f i e d  on several occasions in d i f f e r e n t  proceedings before 

the Commission tha t  i t  i s  s t i l - 1  very va l id .  

Q Can you t e l l  me what your Schedule J power, what you 

pro ject  f o r  Schedule J during the year 2004? 

A Schedule J purchases? 

Q Yes. 

A That would be i n  my testimony t h a t  was f i l e d  

September 12th. It would be Bates stamp Page 47. January 

through December 2004, Schedule J purchases. You want t o t a l  

do l la rs  or on a u n i t  basis? 

Q 
A $75.42 a megawatt hour. 

Q And what i s  Schedule J? 

MR. BEASLEY: Madam Chairman, we're going back now t o  

No. I want t o  know the pr ice  per megawatt hour. 

rebuttal  testimony e a r l i e r  testimony. This is on 
cross exami nat i on 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. 

MR. McWHIRTER: IS t 
MR. BEASLEY: I t  I S .  

McWhi r t e r  

i a t  on objection? 

MR. McWHIRTER: Well, she i s  saying t h a t  Hardee i s  

s t i l l  cost -ef fect ive,  and I ' m  going t o  t r y  t o  d is t inguish i n  

j u s t  a few questions what the dif ference i n  cost i s  f o r  power 

purchased from Hardee w i th  respect t o  Schedule J power. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Are you t r y i n g  t o  use the d i rec t  
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Gestimony t o  lay a foundation fo r  your question on rebut ta l?  

[ f  t h a t ' s  the case, 1 w i l l  a l l o w  it. 

MR. McWHIRTER: A l l  r i g h t .  Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: Schedule. 3 purchases are j u s t  various 

mrchases tha t  are made on the market on the hour.. 

3Y MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q And t h a t  happens- genera 

y power and i t ' s  during peak 

A It happens a t  any point  

economic purchase t h a t  happens a t  

But i f  you compare tha t  Q 

l y  when you're not able t o  

periods? 

i n  time. 

3:OO i n  the morning. 

$75 t o  the $129 you say tha t  

It could be an 

Tampa E l e c t r i c  i s  purchasing from Hardee Power Partners, i t  

looks l i k e  i t  would be more cos t -e f fec t i ve  t o  go t o  Schedule J 

than t o  go t o  Hardee, doesn't it? 

A Well, I wouldn't agree w i th  tha t  because you have 

taken the capacity costs that  a re  located i n  the capacity 

f i l i n g  fo r  the Hardee but you have not done anything t o  match 

up the J capacity costs as well 

single purchase. This i s  a multitude o f  purchases. So there 

could be some costs i n  there tha t  are $100, $150 a megawatt 

hour, and there could be, as I said, the 3:OO a.m. purchase i n  

the middle n ight  t h a t ' s  been projected tha t  may only be a t  $22. 

So I can' t  necessarily agree wi th  you tha t  t o  look a t  i t  you 

can make t h a t  determination. 

I n  addit ion, t h i s  i s  not one 

Q But the average over the year i s  $75; r i gh t?  
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A That 's correct. 

Q And the average, j u s t  the energy component without 

the capacity payment i s  $58 f o r  Hardee Power? 

A That 's correct .  

Q And f o r  other various market - -  the average over the 

year for various market - based purchases i s  $49? 

A Right. But, M r .  McWhirter, I guess the more 

convenient way t o  look a t  it i s  tha t ,  as you pointed out, the 

capacity costs for Hardee are sunk costs. They are going t o  be 

paid whether we take one megawatt hour or a thousand megawatt 

hours. So rea l l y ,  you're looking a t  the increments. So you're 

r e a l l y  looking a t  the 58 r e a l l y  as the more appropriate 

comparison because, as you stated yoursel f, we are going t o  pay 

the $19.6 m i l l i o n  and - -  
Is 58 more or  less than 49? Q 

A I t  i s  more. 

Q I see. 

A But i t ' s  also less than the 75.42 tha t  you pointed 

out. 

Q What are the speci f ic  benef i ts t ha t  customers are 

get t ing from the new CT tha t  was i n s t a l l e d  a t  the Hardee Power 

s tat ion before you sold tha t  stat ion? 

A The spec i f i c  benefi ts they are get t ing i s  the f a c t  

tha t  we are able t o  serve them. They are ge t t ing  r e l i a b l e  

power. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1079 

Q What if instead o f  entering i n t o  tha t  contract you 

l~ould have taken one o f  those four CTs tha t  you spent 

665 m i l l i o n  f o r  and pu t  them I n t o  operation i n  the ra te  base? 

-lave you considered t h a t  as a possible a l ternat ive i n  your 

m a l  y s i  s? 

A Well, i f  you remember correct ly ,  M r .  Smith stated 

za r l i e r  t ha t  t h i s  agreement, the contract came i n t o  play i n  

2000. 

horizon a t  t ha t  po int .  So your hypothetical i s  a l i t t l e  

d i f f i c u l t  t o  deal w i th  because we're not r e a l l y  doing a f a i r  

comparison there. 

I don' t  even th ink  the purchase o f  the CTs was on the 

Q And your respons ib i l i t y  i s  planning. Do you know 

uJhat the plan was f o r  the CTs t h a t  you're going t o  put on- l ine  

i n  the next f i v e  or  s i x  years? 

A No, I do not. 

MR. McWHIRTER: A l l  r i g h t .  I have no fur ther  

questions o f  the witness. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr . Vandiver. 

MR. VANDIVER: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r  . LaFace. 

MR. LaFACE: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: S t a f f .  

MR. KEATING: Just three or  four questions. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KEATING: 
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Q Ms. Jordan, do you know what the incremental cost o f  

the replacement capacity and energy was tha t  was purchased f o r  

Tampa E l e c t r i c  i n  l i e u  o f  operating Gannon u n t i l  the end o f  

2004 o r  what i t ' s  projected t o  be? 

A I would say the closest t h ing  obviously, as was 

stated e a r l i e r ,  w i th  a l l  o f  the various changes tha t  occur, 

j u s t  w i th  the charge i n  a f u e l  commodity pr ice,  for example, 

can change the project ion, but M r .  Vandiver yesterday 

referenced a page o f  conf ident ia l  information, Page 1187, and 

there were f i v e  scenarios l i s t e d  on t h a t  pa r t i cu la r  page. The 

f i f t h  scenario i s  probably the closest t o  what the company d i d  

implement i n  terms o f  the shutdown o f  the Gannon un i t .  

And tha t  scenario includes replacement fue l? 

That scenario includes an impact f o r  fuel  and 

Q 
A 

purchased power. 

Q Have Tampa E l e c t r i c ' s  ratepayers paid more or w i l l  

they pay more i n  fuel adjustment charges because o f  i t s  

decision t o  shut down Gannon when i t  d i d  rather than operate i t  

u n t i l  the end o f  2004? 

A I don' t  t h ink  you can emphatically say they would or  

they w i l l  or won't p r imar i l y  because o f  the a v a i l a b i l i t y  o f  the 

Gannon un i ts .  You would have t o  assume tha t  you would not have 

the forced outages or t ha t  the un i t s  would not on t h e i r  own 

take themselves out of operation. 

Q %For 2003 do you know i f  Tampa E l e c t r i c ' s  ratepayers 
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t a l  king about because 3 

en t i re  year. 

Q Just one more 
any cos t -e f fec t i ve  anal 

o r  4 were 

quest i on . 

Daid more i n  fuel adjustment charges as a r e s u l t  o f  the 

decision t o  shut down Gannon p r i o r  t o  the end o f  2004? 

A Again, I don' t  know-that they paid more per se 

because, as I stated, 1 don ' t  r e a l l y  know the performance o f  

the uni ts ,  or I can ' t  guess the performance o f  the uni ts .  And 

it would p r imar i l y  be the Gannon Units 1 and 2 tha t  we're- 

on - l i ne  f o r  bas ica l l y  the 

Has Tampa E l e c t r i c  performed 

rses o f  i t  decision t o  shut down Gannon 

vJhen i t  d i d  and t o  buy replacement capacity and energy? 

A I th ink  the information t h a t ' s  provided on the 

conf ident ia l  Page 1187 i s  the company's analysis a t  t ha t  time 

t o  make a determination on the projected impacts. 

Q 

A 

Has the company performed any more recent analyses? 

The company provided I t h ink  i n  an interrogatory 

response t o  the s t a f f  some addit ional information tha t  was 

requested tha t  updated some o f  t ha t  information. 

MR. KEATING: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, do you have any 

questions o f  Ms. Jordan? Commi ss i  oner Deason. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Jordan, I ' m  looking a t  

Page 22 o f  your revised rebuttal testimony. And on Lines 2 and 

3, you indicate i n  reference t o  Ms. Brown's testimony tha t  she 

i ncorrect l  y appl i ed 57.4 m i  1 1 i on as i ncremental avoided O&M 
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;avings f o r  2003. And I believe she also - -  she made an 

?stimate f o r  2004 as wel l  ; i s  t ha t  correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h i s  page, you go and you 

ident i f y  several reasons tha t  you disagree w i t h  her. Did. you 

:alculate what you consider t o  be an appropriate amount i f  O&M 

savings a t t r i bu tab le  t o  the ear ly  shutdown o f  Gannon Units 

1 through 4? 

THE WITNESS: I did  not ,  s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Do you have an opinion as t o  

vhat t h a t  number i s ?  

THE WITNESS: I ' m  looking f o r  a pa r t i cu la r  document 

that was f i l e d .  Actual ly,  probably the  closest information 

dould be the information tha t  i s  also contained on the 

zonfidential Page 1187 tha t  also has information tha t  pertains 

to  the O&M. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. You've l o s t  me. 1187. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: What i s the conf i denti a1 document 

you're re fe r r i ng  to?  

THE WITNESS: Hold on one second. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Beasley, was that one o f  the 

interrogatory responses? 

THE WITNESS: We've got t h a t  information available. 

MR. VANDIVER: That's one o f  our exhib i ts ,  
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:ommissioner. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Can you remind me which one i t  was, 

Ir . Vandi ver? 

MR. VANDIVER: Yes, malam, i f  you g ive me j u s t  one 

;econd. I bel ieve i t ' s  MJM-5. 
THE WITNESS: I t ' s  MJM-5. It i s .  We've got i t  

3vai 1 ab1 e. 

MR. VANDIVER: I t ' s  MJM-5, Commissioner. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. 

MR. VANDIVER: I t ' s  i n  the record. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr . Ma joros ' s exhibi t  . 
MR. VANDIVER: Yes, ma'am. 
CHAIRMAN JABER: The scenario sheet. 

MR. VANDIVER: Yes. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Realizing tha t  t h i s  i s  

conf ident ia l  and 1 don ' t  want t o  discuss the speci f ic  numbers, 

I guess i t ' s  okay t o  ind icate t h a t  there are a number o f  

scenarios here? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I s  there a par t i cu la r  scenario 

tha t  you fee l  i s  superior? 

THE WITNESS: I th ink  the  one t h a t  represents more 

closely to when the  un i t s  were actually shut down i s  Scenario 

Number 5. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Now, back t o  Page 22 o f  your 
revised rebuttal  testimony, you indicated a number o f  f l aws ,  i n  

your opinion, a number o f  flaws i n  Ms. Brown's assumptions and 

calculat ions. Are there s i m i l a r f l a w s  i n  Scenario 5 o f  

qr. Majoros's testimony, or those flaws do not apply t o  MJM-5? 
THE WITNESS: There are not s imi lar  flaws necessarily 

i n  the O&M. He d i d  u t i l i z e  some o f  the company's information. 

I would say tha t  the f l a w s  tha t  I saw were pr imar i l y  on the 

fuel replacement power analysis tha t  he completed. And I th ink  

I indicated tha t  i n  my rebuttal  testimony. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Let 's  t a l  k about tha t  

f o r  a moment. 

your revised rebut ta l  testimony. 

I ' m  looking at your JDJ-4 which i s  attached t o  

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And on Page 2 o f  2, there a t  

the bottom o f  t ha t  page, you have an estimated impact. And I 
don't th ink  tha t  number i s  conf ident ia l .  

THE WITNESS: NO. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. You've calculated an 

estimated impact o f  8.2 m i l l i on .  

wi th  t h e i r  methodology, but you've made corrections t o  the 

calculat ion methodology. 

8.2 m i  1 1 i o n  represent? 

THE WITNESS: The 8.2 m i l l i o n  represents the impact 

I know t h a t  you don ' t  agree 

In your opinion, what does the 

based on the methodology tha t  Ms. Brown put fo r th .  
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h i s  impact i s  the 

addit ional fuel cost a t t r ibu tab le  t o  the ear ly  shutdown o f  

Gannon Units 1 through 4? 

THE WITNESS: Correct,. based on her methodology. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Thank you .. 
CHAIRMAN JABER: Ms. Jordan, I ' d  1 i ke t o  t ry  t o  put 

t o  bed the issue o f  dead f re igh t .  Were you here when I was 

asking Ms. Brown questions related t o  whether she would modify 

her testimony a f t e r  she heard your d i rec t  testimony tha t  

appeared t o  me t o  ind icate tha t  you d i d n ' t  bel ieve dead f re igh t  

was an issue any longer because there was no dead-freight 

charge under t h i s  new contract; i s  tha t  correct? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Did you hear the exchange between 

she and I?  

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am. And I would s t i l l  s tate as 

I stated ea r l i e r  t ha t  there are no dead-freight charges w i th in  

t h i s  - -  f o r  t h i s  ex i s t i ng  contract t ha t  expires a t  the end o f  

the year. They are not i n  a new name, a new form. There are 

no dead- f re igh t  charges associ ated. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And i n  tha t  regard, she expressed a 

concern wi th  regard t o  not knowing or  suspecting tha t  i n  a 

future proceeding or i n  another area o f  cost recovery, you may 

attempt t o  recover dead f re igh t .  Would you address tha t  

concern and suspicion, pl ease. 
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THE WITNESS: We w i l l  not attempt t o  recover dead 

f re igh t  f o r  the ex is t ing  contract. There i s  no dead f re igh t .  

t h i s  Commission 

d want t o  v e r i f y  

might they look 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And i f  our s t a f f  or 
o r  any o f  the part ies involved i n  the case wou 

that for the next year 's fuel proceeding, what 

a t  t o  v e r i f y  tha t  information? 

THE WITNESS: Well, a l l  o f  the costs obviously as 

your audit  s t a f f  would see w i l l  be invoiced. So there w i l l  be 

the opportunity t o  look a t  a l l  o f  the invoices tha t  come i n .  

And i f  we're not fo l lowing the terms o f  the contract, that  w i l l  

be very obvious. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And t o  the degree there would be any 

sor t  o f  charge, it would be spec i f i ca l l y  itemized? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, i t  would. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: When t h i s  conf ident ia l  exh ib i t  was 

i n i t i a l l y  brought t o  our at tent ion,  I believe i t  was yesterday, 

the days are running together, but I th ink  i t  was yesterday, I 

asked one o f  the witnesses i f  he knew what the purpose o f  the 

exh ib i t  was. Primarily, I was looking a t  - -  we referenced t h i s  

yesterday, I assume i t ' s  safe t o  reference again today, i f  he 

would look a t  the l i n e  average customer b i l l  impact and then 

the net savings l i n e .  And  i n  tha t  s p i r i t ,  what i s  the purpose 

o f  t h i s  exhib i t?  

THE WITNESS: The purpose o f  t h i s  document was t o  t r y  

t o  summarize i n  a very short format the potent ia l  impacts given 
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Jarious dates o f  shutt ing down the Gannon uni ts .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: And what f o r  purpose? Speci f ica l ly  

C'm t r y i n g  t o  understand i f  i t  was f o r  the purpose o f  

n i t i ga t i ng  the impact t o  the customer's b i l l  or  f o r  the purpose 

i f  understanding which scenario would give you mare savings f o r  

your shareholders. 

THE WITNESS: I t  was not f o r  the purpose o f  

3etermining which would give us more savings for the 

shareholders. I ' m  not sure that  t ha t  ac tua l l y  occurs i n  the 

t o t a l i t y .  I t  was t o  understand the potent ia l  impacts on a l l  

sides o f  the equation. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And the reference t o  net savings, 

those are savings t o  whom? 

THE WITNESS: Those are savings po ten t i a l l y  t o  the 

budget fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r  stat ion.  

CHAIRMAN JABER: And savings t o  the budget benef i t  

whom? 

THE WITNESS: Savings t o  the budget could u l t imate ly  

benef i t  the ratepayers o r  the company. 

the company i s  not going t o  expend the dol lars .  It says that  

par t i cu la r  organization w i l l  not expend those dol lars ,  but i f  

i t ' s  found, then i t  could be used i n  another area o f  the 

company. 

It does not say that  

CHAIRMAN JABER: And i n  response t o  Commissioner 

Deason's question, 1 believe you said Scenario 5 i s  the 
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scenari o o f  your preference. 

THE WITNESS: I t ' s  not the scenario o f  my preference, 

i t ' s  the one tha t  more closely al igns w i th  what actua l ly  

occurred w i th  regards t o  the shutdown o f  the un i ts .  

exactly - -  the dates tha t  were assumed i n  the analysis don' t  

I t ' s  not 

exactly match, but i t ' s  the closest one t o  what ac tua l l y -  

occurred. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Again, without revealing any o f  the 

numbers, am I correct i n  in terpret ing Scenario 5 t o  resu l t  i n  

the leas t  amount o f  customer b i l l  impact but not necessarily 

the highest net savings t o  the budget? 

THE WITNESS: Actual ly, Scenario 3 does have a lower 

impact, but you are correct that  jt i s  not the harshest - -  most 

harshest scenario on the page. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: What would you consider the harshest 

scenario on the page? 

THE WITNESS: 

customers, Scenario 2 

I n  terms o f  an impact t o  the r e t a i l  

CHAIRMAN JABER: And am I correct i n  in te rpre t ing  

t h i s  chart tha t  t ha t  scenario resul ts  i n  the greatest savings 

t o  the budget? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. Commi s s i  oner Deason. 

DEASON: Yeah, I have a few fol low-up 

d r e f e r  again t o  your Exhib i t  JDJ-4, and quest 

COMMISSIONER 

ons. If you cou 
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a t  Page 1 o f  2. F i r s t  o f  a l l ,  l e t  me ask you t h i s .  

i on  which we discussed earl i e r  which i s  found on 

o f  t ha t  exh ib i t ,  what period o f  t ime does tha t  

cover? 

THE WITNESS: 2003. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Only 2003? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Now, d i d  Ms. Brown make a 

calculat ion f o r  2003 and 2004? 

THE WITNESS: She d id  a high-level calculat ion,  yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Did you attempt t o  make a 

cal cul a t ion  f o r  2004? 

THE WITNESS: No, I d i d  not. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And why not? 

THE WITNESS: Because I d i d n ' t  r e a l l y  agree w i th  her 

methodology. 

tha t  even w i th  the methodology tha t  she u t i l i z e d ,  she d i d  not 

fo l low i t  a l l  the way through correct ly.  

I was j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  make a determination t o  show 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Referr ing t o  Page 1 o f  2, why 

are there no amounts on Section 2 there a t  the bottom o f  the 

page, why are there no amounts l i s t e d  for Gannon Unit  4? 

THE WITNESS: There a re  no amounts l i s t e d  f o r  Gannon 

Unit 4 because Gannon Unit  4, the transmission f a c i l i t i e s  will 

be u t i l i z e d  f o r  Bayside Unit Number 2. So i t  was not as i f  

there was a determination t o  take the u n i t  o f f - l i n e  as a 
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were repowered t o  Bayside Units 1 and 2. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Here again, re fe r r i ng  t o  

Page 2 o f  2, the 8.2 m i l l i o n  f o r  2003, would the amount 

a t t r ibu tab le  t o  2004 be a t  leas t  equal t o  the 2003 amount? 

THE WITNESS: Probably based on the methodology, 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But i t  probably would be 
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business decision. It was a determination t o  take i t  o f f  

because the f a c i l i t i e s  were needed f o r  Bayside Unit 2. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. And why are there no 

amounts for Gannon Units 5 and 6? 

THE WITNESS: 5 and 6 are Bayside Units. 1 and 2, t ha t  

res 

substant ia l ly  more since i t ' s  a f u l l  year; correct? What i s  

your opinion on that? How would they compare? 

THE WITNESS: I haven't u t i l i z e d  her methodology, so 

I'm r e a l l y  not sure. But because, l i k e ,  as you said t h a t  i t  i s  

a f u l l  year, I would expect i t  t o  be greater than the 8.2. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr . Beasl ey, red i rect? 

MR. BEASLEY: No red i rect ,  but  I would l i k e  t o  move 

Exhib i t  40. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Without objection, Exh ib i t  40 i s  

admitted i n t o  the record. 

(Exhibi t  40 admitted i n t o  the record. ) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: And l e t ' s  see, par t ies double-check 

me on t h i s ,  and, Commissioners, I have tha t  Ms. Jordan was our 
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l a s t  witness. And you are excused, Ms. Jordan. Thank you f o r  

your testimony . 

(Witness excused.) - 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Is t ha t  what you a l l  have? No other 

witnesses t o  be taken up today? 

MR. BEASLEY: That 's correct. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, j u s t  so you know, 

s t a f f  has informed me a couple o f  par t ies have requested the 

opportunity t o  provide closing arguments on - - Ms. Davis, 

Mr. Twomey, remind me which issue. 

MS. DAVIS: I believe i t ' s  Issue 13E, the waterborne 

transportat ion issue f o r  Progress Energy. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: 13E. And the request f o r  closing 

arguments i s  l im i ted  t o  tha t  issue? 

MS. DAVIS: Yes, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, I'm i nc l ined  t o  grant 

tha t  request f o r  c losing arguments i f  you a l l  don' t  object. I 

intend t o  provide a t ime speci f ic  opportunity f o r  such closing 

arguments. And j u s t  so you know, i n  terms o f  planning fo r  the 

evening, wi th  those closing arguments I intend t o  close the 

hearing. 

f o r  t h i s  even-ing, come back i n  the morning and take up whatever 

recommendation s t a f f  may have i n  t h i s  proceeding. That 

conversation w i l l  be l i m i t e d  - -  i t  w i l l  be a posthearing par t  

o f  the proceeding. That par t i c ipa t ion  w i l l  be l im i ted  t o  

I n  terms o f  par t i c ipa t ion ,  w e ' l l  close the hearing 
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oners and s t a f f .  Do you a l l  have any objections t o  

concerns? 

COMMISSIONER DAVIDSON: No objections. I would j u s t  

isk tha t  perhaps we make sure tha t  a l l  the par t ies here are 
iware tha t  we're going t o  do tha t ,  and i f  they would l i k e  t o  

aake a closing, they ' re  f ree t o  make a c losing as wel l .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Absolutely. Okay. Mr. Twomey, 

Is. Davis, I'm th ink ing ten minutes per par ty  on the issue o f  

13E. I can' t  imagine you need any more time than that.  Okay. 

laximum o f  ten minutes. Te l l  me who exactly wants t o  make a 

3 o s i  ng argument on tha t  issue. 

MS. KAUFMAN: I would l i k e  t o ,  Madam Chairman. 1: 

Jon ' t need near1 y ten m i  nutes , however. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. Ms. Kaufman. 

MR. VANDIVER: Very b r i e f l y .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Vandiver, Mr. Twomey, and 

4s. Davis. Just for the sake o f  order, we're going t o  s t a r t  

rJith Ms. Kaufman unless you've agreed t o  something else. 
MS. KAUFMAN: We have not discussed the order. That 

~ o u l d  be f i n e  wi th  me. 
CHAIRMAN JABER: Go ahead, Ms. Kaufman. 

MS. KAUFMAN: As I said, Commissioners, the hour i s  

l a t e ,  and so I ' m  going t o  be very b r i e f  about t h i s .  

have two points t o  make. 

are a l l  wel l  aware tha t  the burden i s  on the u t i l i t y  t o  prove 

I th ink I 
Point number one i s  I th ink  tha t  you 
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the reasonableness of the costs tha t  i t  comes i n  here seeking 

to recover from the ratepayers. I t ' s  t h e i r  burden. I t ' s  t h e i r  

iurden i n  every fuel adjustment t o  do so. 

You've heard your own s t a f f  member t e s t i f y  and 

zross-examined a t  length tha t  the payments t h a t  we're t a  

3bout tha t  come from t h i s  waterborne coal t ransportat ion 

be 

king 

proxy 

w e  excessive, unreasonable, not appropriate t o  be used f o r  a 

3rudence determination. I won't r e i t e r a t e  a l l  o f  h i s  

testimony. I know t h a t  you a l l  looked ca re fu l l y  a t  the 

Eonfidential document tha t  provided the various margins tha t  

4r. McNulty discussed. And I have t o  say t h a t  I was amazed 

Defore the revisions were made and even more so a f t e r  the 

zorrections were made tha t  M r .  McNulty handed out. We've got 

i o l l a r s  a t  stake here i n  '02,  '03, and then going forward t o  

'04, and I would urge you t o  be sure t h a t  the only costs tha t  

are col lected from the ratepayers are reasonable costs, costs 

that  are not excessive and costs tha t  are appropriate fo r  cost 

recovery i n  t h i s  proceeding. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, Ms. Kaufman. 

M r  . Vandi ver . 
MR. VANDIVER: Very b r i e f l y .  The F lor ida Progress 

proxy i s  broken. The margins are not high but  rather they ' re  

so high as t o  shock, I believe, the conscious o f  the 

Commission. You saw the margins. The margins are c lea r l y  

excessive. There's no other word t o  describe them. Your s t a f f  
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testimony has stated tha t  they are unreasonable. This body has 

3 duty t o  set  f a i r ,  j u s t ,  and reasonable rates. I believe i t ' s  

incumbent upon you t o  exercise tha t  respons ib i l i t y .  And your 

s t a f f  has l a i d  t h i s  out before'yau. This issue was i d e n t i f i e d  

l a s t  December f o r  your consideration, and so I don' t  bel ieve 

there' s equi t ies involved tha t  would suggest any other resu l t  . 
Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you. 

Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: Thank you, Madam Chairman, 

Commissioners. F i r s t ,  I th ink what you've heard from the four 

witnesses t h a t  t e s t i f i e d  on t h i s  issue gives you an awareness 

o f  what you know as wel l  as what you don't know. 

category o f  what I th ink  you know from the testimony and the 

evidence - - pardon me for t h i s  cough - - i s  that you-a l l  have a 

s ta tutory  responsi bi  1 i t y  t o  only i ncl ude costs i n  customers ' 

rates t h a t  are f a i r ,  reasonable, and necessary. It's the l a w .  

In the 

You know your s t a f f  witness t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  based on a 

factual s t a f f  audi t  and the discovery associated w i th  i t  tha t  

the waterborne coal transportat ion f o r  t h i s  company f o r  2002 

were excessive, unreasonable, and t h a t  they were, i n  h i s  words, 

a detriment t o  the u t i l i t y ' s  ratepayers. 

You also know tha t  the conf ident ia l  margins you saw 

are c l e a r l y  excessive, i f  not obscene. And you have t o  know 

tha t  there i s  no e f f i c i e n t  company theory t h a t  can serve t o  
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jefend these p r o f i t  leve ls  when these rates and p r o f i t s  become 

public, as they eventual ly w i l l .  You know or should know tha t  

retroact ive ratemaking has no $1 ace i n  fuel adjustment 

proceedings, especi a1 1 y whereas here Commission j u r i  sdi c t i on  i s 

spec i f i ca l l y  maintained over the years 2002 and 2003. There i s  

no re t roac t ive  ratemaking here, none, period. 

You know or  should know as well  t h a t  your s t a f f ' s  

j u s t i f i c a t i o n  f o r  ignoring excessive and unreasonable costs 

both i n  the past and on an ongoing basis i s  absurd. 

Energy had a year 's not ice o f  t h i s  review and has an 

inescapable burden o f  proof tha t  can ' t  be absolved by some 

l e g a l l y  untenable theory o f  shared responsib i l i ty .  

doesn't e x i s t  

Progress 

It simply 

You also know tha t  your s t a f f  apparently negotiated 

wi th  the u t i l i t y  t o  l i m i t  cross-examination and the scope o f  - -  

o r  the existence o f  rebuttal  testimony i n  exchange f o r  t h i s  

s t ipu la t ion .  That seems somewhat inconsistent wi th the 

Chairman's - -  i f  i t  happened, i t  seems inconsistent w i th  the 

Chairman's d i rec t i on  t o  t a l k  t o  a l l  part ies.  You have t o  know 

tha t  you cannot accept t h i s  s t ipu lat ion,  especial ly over the 

strenuous objections over each and every customer par ty  t o  

these proceedings. 

You know now tha t  the proxy mechanism i n  the words o f  

your s t a f f  witness was broken the f i r s t  f i v e  years o f  i t s  

operation and t h a t  i t  remains broken now a f u l l  decade l a t e r .  
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You know your s t a f f  wants you t o  f i x  o r  replace t h i s  broken 

proxy mechanism as soon as i s  possible, what I would suggest 

that  you don ' t  know as a resu l t  o f  the testimony heard- today - - 

yesterday. You probably don ' t  have su f f i c i en t  evidence t o  know 

how much t o  adjust the transportat ion costs being sought here 

even as you know t h a t  you must adjust them downward. You don ' t  

know exact ly how t o  f i x  or- replace the broken proxy even though 

you know i n  the words o f  your s t a f f  tha t  you should do i t  as 

soon as possible and tha t  you probably shouldn't w a i t  another 

f u l l  year. 

On behalf o f  my c l i en ts ,  I ' d  l i k e  t o  recommend tha t  

you consider the fol lowing: 

maintain your j u r i s d i c t i o n  over the cost f o r  2002, hold them 

subject t o  continued resolut ion and j u r i s d i c t i o n  and refund; do 

the same wi th  2003 even though by your procedures and by l a w  

they would carry over i n t o  next year; have your s t a f f  conduct a 

f u l l  and more complete audit f o r  the year 2003 so t h a t  you'd 

have a f u l l  and complete awareness o f  a l l  o f  the costs, the 

current costs tha t  the company's fuel subsidiary pays f o r  i t s  

a f f i  1 i ate and non - a f f i  1 i ate transactions. 

Lastly, I would ask tha t  i n  conjunction w i th  tha t ,  

I ' d  l i k e  t o  recommend tha t  you 

tha t  you spin t h i s  o f f .  You don ' t  need t o  make a decision on 

t h i s  tomorrow. 

don ' t  need t o  make a decision based on incomplete, i n s u f f i c i e n t  

evidence. Hold i t  o f f ,  spin it o f f ,  and consider combining i t  

I f  you hold the money subject t o  refund, you 
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wi th  the spinoff  docket t ha t  you've established f o r  TECO and 

now scheduled hearings i n  the month o f  May o f  next year. The 

issues a f fec t ing  t h i s  company are substant ia l ly  the same as 

TECO 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr. Twomey, a Preheari.ng Of f i cer  has 

issued an order tha t  establ ishes May as hearing dates? - 

MR. TWOMEY: I was given, I believe, e i ther  through 

e-mail message or telephone message tha t  there was a prehearing 

and a hearing date i n  May. I may be mistaken. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: You may not be. I t ' s  j u s t  

in te res t ing  because I don' t  have tha t  information, s t a f f .  

MR. TWOMEY: I r respect ive o f  the time, I would 

suggest t o  you tha t  the issues confronting the Commission 

v i s - a - v i s  TECO i n  i t s  waterborne transportat ion and t h i s  

company and i t s  waterborne transportat ion and the 1 ack o f  

competition or  the use o f  a proxy or a benchmark are 

substant ia l ly  the same, and i t  seems t o  me desirable t o  be - - 
t ha t  they would be heard together and tha t  they be resolved in 
a manner tha t  i s  consistent w i th  one another. So t h a t ' s  what I 

would recommend t o  you, and I appreciate the opportunity t o  

make these comments. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Thank you, Mr. 

MR. TWOMEY: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Ms. Davis. 

womey . 

MS. DAVIS: Commissioners, we f i n d  ourselves i n  an 
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assertions 

d urge you t o  

neath a very d i f f e ren t  conclusion. 

for a few minutes t o  go back and.look a t  the h is to ry  o f  how 

th i  s devel oped. 

recovery was established on a cost plus basis; t ha t  i s ,  the 

zompany had the  burden t o  prove up what i t s  actual costs were 

plus an allowed return on i t s  equi ty investments tha t  were 

needed t o  provide the service. In about 1989 i n  t h i s  fuel 

I th ink  i t  bears indulgence 

When waterborne transportat ion f i r s t  came about., cost 

docket, you made a decision t h a t  .you d id  not wish t o  continue 

se t t ing  the basis f o r  cost recovery f o r  water transportat ion on 

the basis o f  cost, t h a t  you wanted t o  move the cost recovery 

mecca t o  a market p r ice  methodol ogy. 

Then you went on t o  f ind as a matter o f  fac t  tha t  

there was not a market p r i ce  t h a t  was established i n  a 

t h i r d - p a r t y  market f o r  a l l  par ts  o f  the chain tha t  we use t o  

provide waterborne transportat ion. As a r e s u l t  o f  tha t  

decision, the part ies,  a l l  o f  whom are here today, entered i n t o  

a s t i pu la t i on  tha t  said tha t  they would set  a proxy pr ice for 
waterborne transportat ion tha t  was, i n  t h e i r  opinion a t  the 

time, the best way t o  t r y  t o  establ ish what a market p r ice  for 

the service might be i f  there was a market. And everyone 

agreed t o  that .  Everyone agreed t o  the indices and t h e i r  

weightings and you a l l  approved it. Thereafter, on an annual 
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basis, the company has presented i n  the fuel  adjustment 

proceedings the computation o f  the index p r i ce  and the amount 

o f  tons shipped by water. And i t ' s  been out there for-review 

and approval by the Commission every year the pr ice  system has 
been i n  e f fec t .  

Now, when you went t o  t h i s  p r i c e  methodology in- 1993, 

i t  essent ia l ly  said, thereafter, you are not going t o  examine 

the company's costs. I f  your costs exceed the market pr ice,  

you w i l l  eat the dif ference. If you beat the market pr ice,  

then you get t o  keep the difference. And that i s ,  t o  my way f 

thinking, exact ly what M r .  Twomey meant yesterday when he said 

t h a t  the pr ice  proxy was intended t o  funct ion as a double-edged 

sword. And we are not here today t o  argue t h a t  we are e n t i t l e d  

t o  keep that method o f  cost recovery without any review on your 

part  forever and ever. We knew l a s t  year t h a t  t h i s  was going 

t o  be subject t o  review t h i s  year. 

ongoing discovery f o r  a year. M r .  Portuondo f i l e d  h i s  

testimony i n  September and said, as f a r  as he could t e l l ,  tha t  

t h i s  proxy had functioned and could continue t o  function as the 

basis for cost recovery. The s t a f f  f i l e d  t h e i r  testimony i n  

the middle o f  October tha t  said, we don't t h ink  i t  should 

continue i n  the future, but we th ink  t h a t  the change should be 

prospective on1 y. 

It has been the subject o f  

Now, the company looked a t  the s t a f f  testimony i n  i t s  

en t i re t y ,  and I t h ink  we concluded and made no secret o f  our 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1100 

conclusion tha t  while we might not l i k e  a l l  o f  the 

characterizations i n  the testimony, we could l i v e  w i th  the 

r e s u l t  i n  i t s  en t i re ty .  And tha t  r e s u l t  i n  i t s  e n t i r e t y  was 

tha t  there would be no change t o . t h e  methodology f o r  the years 

tha t  were already past because we would have no o.pportunity t o  

respond t o  tha t  change i n  method. 

I n  the future,  we have agreed t o  adopt the s t a f f  

process f o r  seeing whether there i s  a market f o r  each segment 

o f  the change where there i s  a market t o  move t o  tha t  as the 

actual cost recovery basis, and where there 's  not, the burden 

would be on us t o  propose what an a l ternat ive market proxy 

might be f o r  t ha t  segment on a going-forward basis. But t o  our 

way o f  th inking, i t  i s  fundamentally unfair t o  say t o  a 

company, I 'm not going t o  look a t  your costs, I ' m  going t o  b o k  

a t  t h i s  market pr ice,  and then a f t e r  the game i s  over, t o  come 

back and say, no, I don' t  l i k e  tha t  pr ice.  I wish I hadn't 

given i t  t o  you. I'm going t o  now go back and look a t  your 

cost, which we t o l d  you a t  the time was not going t o  be the 

basis f o r  cost recovery. So we th ink  as a matter o f  

fundamental regulatory fairness tha t  i f  you want t o  change the 

methodology, no problem looking a t  i t  and changing i t  on a 

prospective basis, but t o  change i t  retrospect ively a f te r  you 

had announced tha t  i t  was not going t o  be the basis f o r  cost  

recovery i s  not fundamentally f a i r .  

I would say th i s .  When you t a l k  about what the 
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continuing j u r i s d i c t i o n  o f  the Commission i s  i n  the fuel  

adjustment docket, those deci s i  ons have a1 ways been premi sed on 

the notion tha t  the basis fo r  -cost recovery was going t o  be 

your prudent and reasonable cost. And I don' t  t h ink  we would 

be here today arguing wi th  you i f  f o r  the year '02, '03, and 

'04 our waterborne costs were subject t o  your review because I 

do agree t h a t  through the  process o f  project ing,  experiencing 

actual costs and truing-up, you would have j u r i s d i c t i o n  t o  

adjust cost on the basis o f  whether you found them t o  be 

reasonable and prudent. But what you are being urged t o  do i s  

t o  take a methodology tha t  says, we w i l l  take a proxy and go 

back and recast the proxy now tha t  the company has no 

opportunity t o  respond t o  t h a t  regulatory change i s  not the 

same th ing  as saying we're going t o  go back and look a t  your 

cost. I t ' s  saying your cost d i d n ' t  count when you experienced 

them. Now tha t  i t ' s  over, they do. And we don ' t  l i k e  the game 

as i t  was played. A t  the time we would have had a chance t o  

respond t o  it. 

I n  tha t  vein, I would respect fu l ly  suggest t ha t  had 

we been here i n  a d i f f e ren t  year when we d i d n ' t  beat the market 

proxy and said, you know what? We knew tha t  t h i s  was an 

independently established proxy, and we knew t h a t  t h a t  was what 

we had t o  deal wi th,  but i t  turns out tha t  our cost exceeded 

the market proxy, so we would l i k e  you t o  go back and adjust 

the basis f o r  cost recovery and g ive us more than the market 
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lroxy was established f o r  tha t  year, I would respect fu l ly  

luggest t ha t  t h e  people who are arguing today tha t  t h i s  i s  not 

' a i r  would be saying, ha, a deal is  a deal. And 1 th ink  tha t  

:hat sword i s  t r u l y  double-edged.and i t  ought t o  cut  both ways. 

And i f  you want t o  change i t  i n  the future,  we're on 

ioard w i th  the change. We'l l work wi th  the s t a f f  and par t ies 

;o f i n d  something tha t  we-hope i s  mutually sat is factory  t o  

werybody. But we would respect fu l ly  suggest and urge you t o  

'ecognize the fac t  t ha t  we abided by an order tha t  was i n  place 

md tha t  t o l d  us tha t  we had a market proxy t o  respond t o  t o  

! i ther beat i t  o r  eat it, and tha t  i f  look a t  the s t a f f  audi t  

-esults, you w i l l  see tha t  based on the s t a f f  audi t ,  we 

r a i  t h f u l  l y  computed the market proxy i n  accordance w i th  your 

r d e r  and applied tha t  as the basis fo r  cost  recovery. 

So we would suggest, respectful 1 y, tha t  you accept 

the proposed resolut ion of t h i s  docket i n  tha t  there would be 

IO change t o  the methodology for '02, '03, and '04, and tha t  we 

jdopt the process out l ined i n  M r .  McNulty's testimony on a 

joing-forward basis beginning w i th  the year 2005. And we ask 

that you consider tha t  we took t h i s  pos i t ion based on i t  
comprehensively addressing the i ssues i n  t h i  s docket , and tha t  

the matter has been out there and everyone has had a chance t o  

address it, and we do not see a basis for not making a f i n a l  

decision on i t  i n  the normal course o f  events, which would 

suggest t ha t  i t  ei ther  happen t h i s  morning or tomorrow as the 
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Commission f inds i t  t o  be acceptab 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Ms. Dav 

e. Thank you. 

s, l e t  me ask you a 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n  question. You said you ask t h a t  we accept 

Mr . McNul t y '  s recommendation on a going- forward basis. Are you 

using tha t  interchangeably w i th  requesting tha t  t.he Commission 

approve the proposed s t i pu la t i on  tha t  was handed out t o  us 

yesterday? 

MS. DAVIS: Yes. In t h i s  sense, i t  was not our 

in ten t ion  t o  change the s p i r i t  o f  what Mr. McNulty recommended 

i n  h i s  testimony, and i t  was our understanding based on 

discussions w i th  the s t a f f  t ha t  the s t i pu la t i on  f a i t h f u l l y  

incorporated i n  a going-forward basis what i t  was t h a t  he had 

recommended. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. You're t r a i l i n g  o f f  a l i t t l e  

b i t .  

MS. DAVIS: I ' m  sorry. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: That 's okay. 

MS. DAVIS: We believed tha t  the s t ipu la t ion  was 

wr i t t en  t o  f a i t h f u l l y  incorporate the recommendations i n  

M r .  McNulty's testimony. So i f  there's any dif ference between 

what's i n  h i s  s t i pu la t i on  and 

say tha t  ' s eminently resol vab 

CHAIRMAN JABER: A1 

That's why 1 asked. M r .  McNu 

what's i n  h i s  testimony, I would 

e. 

r i g h t .  Well, l e t  me fol low up. 

ty, I heard a t  least  two areas 

where he disagreed - - there may be more. I heard two areas 
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where he disagreed w i th  the proposed s t ipu la t ion .  The f i r s t ,  

i f  I ' m  not mistaken, re la ted t o  Paragraph 1, the trans-Gulf 

component. The proposed s t i pu la t i on  says tha t  i t  should be 

equal t o  26 percent o f  the 2005 market pr ice.  

what M r .  McNulty said he believed the percentage was, but I do 

remember tha t  he disagreed w i th  tha t .  So are you suggesting 

tha t  Paragraph 1 be modified t o  r e f l e c t  whatever Mr. McNulty 

woul d support i n  h i s  testimony? 

MS. DAVIS: Wel l ,  I th ink  tha t  we would be happy t o  

I don' t  reca l l  

do whatever you a l l  want us t o  do on that .  As we understood 

Mr. McNulty's testimony, he was saying tha t  as the contracts 
expire, they should be replaced w i th  t h i s  RFP process. And as 

we understood tha t ,  we thought tha t  he was maybe not aware tha t  

t ha t  par t i cu la r  contract d i d n ' t  expire u n t i l  the end o f  the 

f i r s t  quarter o f  '05. So tha t  was an attempt t o  take the 

s p i r i t  o f  what he s a i d  and adjust i t  t o  the r e a l i t y  o f  when the 

contract expired. But the i n ten t  was not t o  extend the 

contract beyond i t s  natural expirat ion date. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: The second area o f  disagreement I 

thought he ar t icu la ted re la ted t o  Paragraph 2 - -  no, sorry, 
Paragraph 3A, Number 3, a maximum term o f  f i v e  years before 

ieved i t  subsequent review o f  the Commission. 

should be a four-year period. 

M r .  McNulty be' 

MS. DAVIS: Again, as I reca l l  Mr. McNulty 

t e s t  

S 

mony, he suggested tha t  the - -  i f  there had t o  be a market 
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woxy f o r  any part icular segment o f  the transportation chain, 

that i t  should be per iodical ly reviewed and that  that  review 

~ ~ o u l d  probably best be conducted as the contract expired, which 

l e  recommended would be somewhere between four and f i v e  years. 

So i t  was our understanding that  i f  we signed a 

Eontract fo r  four years, that  a t  the end o f  that  contract 

?xpirat ion, we would review the market proxy, but i n  no event 

r~ould i t  go more than f i v e  years. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. So i t  sounds l i k e  you're 

agreeing t o  a modification o f  that  Number 3 that  would make 

clear that  whatever review should coincide with the termination 

D f  a contract. 

MS. DAVIS: Yes, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. I have a legal question wi th 

respect t o  t r y ing  t o  ru le  and accept on a proposed st ipulat ion 

that 's  only offered by you a l l  and perhaps our s t a f f  

recommending that we accept it. This i s  not a st ipulat ion 

entered i n t o  between a l l  o f  the part ies i n  t h i s  case that,  

frankly, have taken strong posit ions related t o  that  issue. 

This doesn't resolve the issue i n  my mind i f  we accept t h i s  

st ipulat ion.  So my question t o  you i s ,  how i s  i t  legal ly  

possible fo r  us t o  ru le  and accept a s t ipu lat ion that part ies 

a re  adamantly opposed to?  

MS. DAVIS: Well ,  I ' m  sorry i f  the term "st ipulat ion" 

d i  dn t accurate1 y convey who I s agreed and who hasn ' t agreed. 
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As we understood it, we read the s t a f f  testimony and said, you 

know, we could l i v e  w i th  th i s .  And we entered an agreement 

with the s t a f f  tha t  i f  t h i s  re-commendation o f  M r .  McNulty was 

acceptable t o  you, i t  was acceptable t o  us, and i t  would 

resolve a l l  o f  the issues in t h i s  docket. And I th ink  whether 

we had agreed w i th  the s t a f f  or not, i t  would be w i th in  your 

purview t o  say, o f  a l l  theopt ions  of fered t o  us, we th ink  

t h a t ' s  the wisest regulatory option f o r  disposing o f  the issues 

i n  t h i s  docket. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: So l e t  me make sure I understand. 

Regardless o f  whether you c a l l  t h i s  a s t i pu la t i on  or resolut ion 

or  an o f f e r  o f  settlement, you acknowledge as a s t ipu la t ion  

i t ' s  not l e g a l l y  possible fo r  us t o  accept i t  as the ult imate 

resolut ion o f  the case without having a l l  o f  the par t ies  sign 

o f f ?  

MS. DAVIS: No, ma'am. I t h ink  what we would urge 

you t o  decide i s  t h a t  reaching a decision on the merits, t h i s  

recommendation tha t  the s t a f f  and we have agreed t o  would be 

the best decision tha t  you could make on t h i s  case. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: You want us t o  independently f i n d  - -  
MS. DAVIS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: - -  t ha t  t h i s  issue i s  resolved by 

usi  ng your idea . 
MS. DAVIS: Yes, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, do you have any 
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s t a f f .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Go ahead, Commissioner Deason. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: The discussion that s t a f f  had 

w i th  Progress concerning the issue o f  waterborne coal 

transportat ion, were any o f  the other par t ies i n v i t e d  t o  

p a r t i  c i  pate i n  that? 

MR. KEATING: Yes. I th ink one o f  the f i r s t  few 

dra f ts  o f  t h i s  document was presented a t  a meeting w i th  a l l  the 

par t ies which d id  not include Mr. Twomey a t  the time as he's 

recent ly intervened i n  t h i s  case. It became apparent sometime 

a f te r  t h a t  meeting tha t  Public Counsel and FIPUG would not 

agree t o  p a r t i c u l a r l y  the term tha t  would not require the proxy 

t o  end u n t i l  the end o f  2004. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So a l l  par t ies t h a t  were 

par t ies a t  the time were i nv i ted  t o  par t i c ipa te  i n  these 

d i  scussi ons. 
MR. KEATING: That 's correct. Now, I w i l l  say a f t e r  

i t  was c lear  tha t  Public Counsel and FIPUG would not agree t o  a 

market p r i ce  proxy tha t  would continue u n t i l  the end o f  2004, 

through b i l a t e r a l  discussion between s t a f f  and the party, we 

had f i n e  tuned tha t  document. And it was c lear t o  us tha t  even 

wi th  the - -  w i th  the f i ne  tuning we were doing, we were not 

modifying the s t i ck ing  point  f o r  Public Counsel and FIPUG, 
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which was t h a t  they would not agree t o  i t  i f  the market p r ice  

proxy wasn't going t o  end before the end o f  2004. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON:. Okay. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: . I  have a question. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commi ssi  oner Brad1 ey. . 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Yes, j u s t  t o  c lear  something 

up. I'm looking a t  Issue 13E,  and i t  says tha t  t h i s  was 

established by order, PSC Order 93 -1331-FOF-E1  i n  1993; i s  t ha t  

correct? 

MR. KEATING: Yeah, I believe i t  was a 1993 order. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay. We1 1 , my question i s  

t h i s .  Is t h i s  order s t i l l  i n  e f fec t ,  o r  i s  i t  t h a t  we are 

th ink ing about a r b i t r a r i l y  dismissing t h i s  order and 

implementing a new process? 

MR. KEATING: No. The process t h a t ' s  established i n  

tha t  order i s  s t i l l  i n  e f f e c t  bas ica l l y  u n t i l  we change it. 

There was no - -  the s t i pu la t i on  tha t  was approved i n  tha t  order 

among the par t ies  had no termination date. 

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay. We1 1 - - 
MR. KEATING: And our approval d i d  not have a 

termination date e i ther .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: So t h i s  order i s  i n  e f fec t ,  

but on a going-forward basis, we can implement t o  change the 

order. This  order i s  i n  e f fec t  for t h i s  pa r t i cu la r  procedure. 

I s  t ha t  what i s  a t  issue here? The par t ies disagree? 
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MR. KEATING: That i s  my view, i s  t ha t  the order i s  

i n  - -  W s  s t i l l  i n  e f f e c t  r i g h t  now u n t i l  we do something t o  

change it, u n t i l  there i s  a vote. I f  there 's  a vote tomorrow 

t o  change it, t h a t ' s  when i t  w i l l  no longer be i n  e f fec t .  That 

market p r ice  proxy mechanism w i l l  no longer be i n  e f f e c t  when 

you vote t o  change it. Now, your vote may ind icate when-that 

procedure formally ends, b u t  r i g h t  now i t ' s  s t i l l  i n  e f fec t .  

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Commissioners, any other questions? 

MR. BEASLEY: Madam Chairman, I would 1 i ke t o  say one 

thing. I don' t  want t o  address any of the Progress Energy 

speci f ic  issues, but  I do take issue w i th  Mr. Twomey's 

suggestion tha t  i f  those issues aren ' t  decided here tomorrow, 

t h a t  they be consolidated w i th  a separate proceeding tha t  you 

set up f o r  Tampa E lec t r i c .  While the issues are waterborne 

coal transportat ion, the part ies,  t h e i r  circumstances are 

completely d i f f e r e n t  and the issues are d i f f e ren t ,  and we th ink  

i t  would be - -  on top o f  that ,  i t  would be an administrat ive 

nightmare for you t o  handle conf ident ia l  information pertaining 

t o  competing in te res ts  i n  the same docket. So we would urge 

tha t  you f i n d  t h a t  be i l l - a d v i s e d  and not do tha t .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Okay. S t a f f ,  before we adjourn f o r  

the evening, i s  there anything else we need t o  take care o f  

tonight? And I pose t h i s  question t o  the par t ies  as well  

because tomorrow we're i n  our posthearing mode and 
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par t i c ipa t ion  will be l im i ted  t o  Commissioners and s t a f f .  

MR. KEATING: 1 am not aware o f  anything else tha t  

needs t o  be taken care o f  ton ight .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr . Beasl ey. 

MR. BEASLEY: I ' m  not e i ther .  

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr . But1 er .  

MR. BUTLER: (Shaking head.) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Ms. Davis. 

MS. DAVIS: (Shaking head.) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Mr . LaFace . 
MR. LaFACE: (Shaking head.) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r .  Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: No, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: M r  . Vandi ver . 
MR. VANDIVER: No, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN JABER: Ms. Kaufman . 
MS. KAUFMAN: (Shaking head.) 

CHAIRMAN JABER: This hearing i s  adjourned. I t  

concludes the hearing stage o f  t h i s  proceeding. Tomorrow a t  

9:00 a.m., Commissioners, s t a f f ,  w e ' l l  reconvene and be i n  our 

agenda mode. 

(Hearing adjourned a t  6:35 p.m. ) 

(Transcript continued i n  sequence wi th  Volume 8.) 
- - - - c  
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